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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to our shareholders the 2020/21 Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2021.

The Group’s overall revenue increased by approximately 149.1% to
approximately HK$933,797,000 during the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: approximately HK$374,903,000). The profit and
total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,071,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,009,000).

The outbreak of the COVID-19 (the “Epidemic”) has created a
challenging operating environment for the foundation industry since
early 2020, including but not limited to supply chain disruptions,
workforce shortages due to illness and preventative quarantines,
work stoppages as a result of policies imposed by the HKSAR
Government, etc. The Group will actively devote its efforts to facilitate
the prevention and control of further spreading of the Epidemic in its
premises and construction sites and to ensure the health and safety
of its employees.

It is believed that the uncertainty arising from the Epidemic,
the intense competition in the foundation industry and the price
fluctuation of raw materials will affect the operational and financial
performance of the Group in the short run. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group had outstanding contracts on hand with total value
exceeding HK$700,000,000 (2020: exceeding HK$300,000,000) and
hence the Group’s revenue for the coming year is secured. The
Group will keep close watch on the evolving situation from time to
time and adopt different tendering strategies and foster long-term
relationships with different quality customers so as to maintain the
Group’s competitiveness in the market.

Notwithstanding the above, as supported by the 2020 Policy Address
of Hong Kong, land and housing are still the most important agendas.
The Government of the HKSAR targets to identify additional land
supply and provide more housing in both the medium and the long
term. The Group remains optimistic towards the foundation industry
in Hong Kong as a result of the boosting of land supply for housing
developments for both the private and the public sectors as well as
fostering infrastructure development plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREEBE

Apart from foundation services and leasing of machinery, the Group
will continue to explore and identify suitable investment opportunities
in order to broaden our revenue base to maximise the return to our
shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group will
continue to exercise due care in pursuing its core business and
promoting its development plans so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will also closely and carefully monitor the latest development in the
global economy and foundation industry in Hong Kong and adjust
its business strategies from time to time if required.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their continuous trust and support. | would also
like to express our sincere appreciation to the fellow Directors and
staff for their contribution and dedication to the continuous business
development of the Group.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EERENRRE DM

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation services (the “Foundation”)
and the leasing of machinery (the “Leasing”) in Hong Kong.

There were 13 active projects as at 31 March 2020. As at 31 March
2021, 8 of these projects have been practically completed while the
other 5 projects remain in progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 4 new projects have been
awarded to the Group and all of them remain in progress as at
31 March 2021. As such, there were a total of 9 projects in progress
as at 31 March 2021.

REVENUE

The Group’s overall revenue increased by 149.1% from approximately
HK$374,903,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$933,797,000 during the year ended 31 March
2021. The increase in the Group’s overall revenue was mainly
attributable to the fact that 4 projects located in the Kai Tak
Development area were in full swing during the year ended 31 March
2021.

GROSS PROFIT/GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit increased by 2.0% from approximately
HK$40,842,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$41,653,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021,
The overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 10.9%
during the year ended 31 March 2020 to approximately 4.5% during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and such were mainly attributable
to the combined effects of the followings:

i. Gross profits generated from the contract works of the 4
projects located in Kai Tak Development area during the year
ended 31 March 2021;

ii. Unexpected additional costs incurred towards the completion
stage of certain projects during the year ended 31 March 2021;
and

iii. Irrecoverable costs incurred for certain projects due to the

delay of site progress and the outbreak of COVID-19 during
the year ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income increased from approximately
HK$3,545,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$12,699,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021,
Such increase was mainly attributable to:

i. Increase in recognition of non-recurring imputed interest of
approximately HK$2,981,000 during the year ended 31 March
2020 to approximately HK$5,962,000 during the year ended
31 March 2021 as a result of the extensions of the repayment
period of the Unsecured Loan (as defined in section “DEBTS
AND CHARGE ON ASSETS” below); and

ii. Receipt of recognition of non-recurring government grants of
approximately HK$5,819,000 under the Employment Support
Scheme launched by the HKSAR Government during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses increased
by 26.0% from approximately HK$34,627,000 during the year ended
31 March 2020 to approximately HK$43,626,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2021. Such increase was in line with the increase
in business scale of the Group and was mainly attributable to:

i. Increase in payments of general and project consulting, legal
and professional fees from approximately HK$4,256,000 during
the year 31 March 2020 to approximately HK$9,494,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2021; and

ii. Increase in payments of administrative employee benefits
expenses of approximately HK$14,921,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2020 to approximately HK$18,449,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs was approximately HK$7,513,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2021 which is comparable to the finance
costs of approximately HK$7,230,000 during the year ended 31
March 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE DN

NET PROFIT

As a result of the abovementioned, during the year under review, the
Group reported a net profit of approximately HK$1,071,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,009,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings, lease liabilities and other borrowings is approximately
HK$201,952,000 (2020: approximately HK$152,862,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s banking facilities were secured
by (i) the Group’s trade receivables and retention receivables under
contract assets or contract liabilities of approximately HK$62,605,000
(2020: approximately HK$44,289,000); (i) the Group’s pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$36,353,000 (2020: approximately
HK$16,308,000); (i) the Group’s right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment with total net carrying amounts of approximately
HK$21,591,000 (2020: approximately HK$34,829,000); (iv) the Group’s
deposit and prepayment for a life insurance policy of approximately
HK$9,274,000 (2020: approximately HK$9,003,000); (v) receivable
rights of gross income from certain projects; (vi) a personal guarantee
executed by a director of a subsidiary; and (vi) the corporate
guarantee executed by the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the guarantees on performance bonds
amounting to approximately HK$183,894,000 (2020: HK$69,459,000)
are secured by (i) the Group’s other receivables of HK$82,171,000
(2020: HK$2,936,000); (i) a personal guarantee executed by
a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and (i) corporate
guarantees executed by the Company and a subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the guarantees a performance bond
amounting to approximately HK$5,912,000 (2020: HK$5,912,000) is
secured by (i) the Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$10,349,000 (2020: HK$10,307,000); and (i) the corporate
guarantee executed by the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE DN

Besides, pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase agreement
entered into between New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”)
and Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”) on 27 April
2018, New Grace Gain provided an unsecured, interest-free loan of
HK$100,000,000 to the Company on 25 May 2018 for a term of 30
months (the “Unsecured Loan”). New Grace Gain shall not be entitled
to demand early repayment and the Company has no right to make
early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, New Grace Gain and the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement (“Agreement 1”) to
extend the repayment period of the Unsecured Loan for 6 months, i.e.
the repayment term of 30 months has been extended to 36 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, New Grace Gain and the
Company further entered into second and third supplemental
agreement (“Agreement 2” and “Agreement 3”) to further extend the
repayment period of the Unsecured Loan for aggregate 12 months, i.e.
the repayment term of 36 months has been extended to 48 months.

Save as the extension of the repayment period under the Agreement
1, Agreement 2 and Agreement 3, other terms and conditions of the
Unsecured Loan remain unchanged.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating rates.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy
while the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate
risks continuously and cautiously.

The Group normally meets its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and
bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had pledged bank deposits, and
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$42,753,000 (2020:
approximately HK$87,370,000). The gearing ratio of the Group as
at 31 March 2021 (defined as the total borrowings divided by total
equity) was approximately 216.0% (2020: approximately 165.4%). As
at 31 March 2021, the current ratio of the Group was approximately
1.2 (2020: approximately 1.5).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not employ
any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk, as
except for United States Dollar (“‘US$”) denominated deposit and
prepayment for a life insurance policy and bank balances, most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$, the functional currencies of the Group’s entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policy will not be performed as
US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of movements in exchange
rates between US$ and HK$ to be insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as those disclosed in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended
31 March 2021.

MATERIAL

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 March 2021
and up to the date of this annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 170 employees (2020: 132
employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers
in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from the Mandatory
Provident Fund and in-house training programmes, salary increments
and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to the employees
according to the assessment of individual performance. The total
staff costs incurred by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2021 were approximately HK$70,935,000 (2020: approximately
HK$52,736,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, save as disclosed in the following paragraph,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the board and chief executive (“CE”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the Chairman of the Board. There is not a
post of the CE in the Company. The responsibilities of the Chairman
of the Board and the CE of the Company are currently taken up by
the Chairman of the Board and the other members of the Board. The
Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Group to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

COMPQOSITION

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of the
composition of the Board and biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report in the section of “Corporate
Information” and on pages 48 to 53 of this annual report in the section
of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”, respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in the
same industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and experience
to the Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors also
provide their independent professional judgments on the assessment
of the development, performance and risk management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy of which
the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of the Board.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors. The following tables illustrate the diversity of the board
members as of the date of this annual report:

RAFREY BEEEHABREFTEK T
RRABEAFHRAMESERENSZTT
1t

Age Group
FHEHER
40 to 50 51 to 60
Name of Directors EEHR 4075% Z505% 515% 26055
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) PR Ak BB ST A (£ ) Y
Mr. Guan Jingdong BRI E v
Dr. Luo Tigjian EERIELT \
Professor Lu Haitian B g R I v
Mr. Liu Xin 287 % & V
Professional Experience
EXER
Information Investment
technology/ consultancy
computing Banking and Accounting and
engineering finance and law accounting
EREM,/ REBAR
Name of Directors 5l EMIRE RITRME BiREE a5
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) REBELRE(FE) \
Mr. Guan Jingdong BERERLE v
Dr. Luo Tiejian BERET \
Professor Lu Haitian BEBRAE v
Mr. Liu Xin BI07 58 £ \

Measurable Objectives and Selection

The Board will take opportunity to invite female members over
time to join the Board when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to having an
appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience in
the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and
reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

o MHEBR
BE-_F-—F=A=+—-RAILFE B
EFEREARTAGHZHEBRARENE
B2BTRBHEIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BT2ERHE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEESE REEETE FMESE RS
Esggad = = R RE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Chen Rongsheng PR AR EE S & 4/4 N/A 3 11 N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Guan Jingdong MEREL 4/4 N/AA i N/AA i N/AA 3 11

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITES
Dr. Luo Tiejian EHBREL 4/4 2/2 N/A 38 17 11
Professor Lu Haitian BEERHR 4/4 2/2 11 1 11
Mr. Liu Xin 2ok & 4/4 2/2 11 17 11

RELATIONSHIP
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2021
regarding appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has arranged
seminars for Directors as continuing professional trainings for
corporate governance and compliance purposes. Some Directors
also participated in other seminars according to their own
preferences.

B8 (%
EREHKE 2RI AR BERY
2% REREMEX EBEEIE -

BYIERITES
HE-_Z-—F=ZA=+—BIEFE AN
RIEMEEB U ERNITESFTETLMHAE
3.10(1) & (2) 6 LA &2 55 3.10A (& ©
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Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the Group, including the
daily operations, business development and strategic planning. He
ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues raised
during Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner.

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back to the Board its decisions
or recommendations, unless there are any legal or regulatory
restrictions imposed on it.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) the appointment
and re-appointment of Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the
Company’s financial information; (c) overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems; and (d) assessing the Group’s corporate governance
functions. The full version of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Audit Committee is currently made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Dr. Luo Tiejian and Professor Lu Haitian. Both Mr. Liu Xin
(chairman of the Audit Committee) and Professor Lu Haitian possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held 2 committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2021

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the Auditor, McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, (without the presence of the
Executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 March 2020 and recommended the same to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee also held another meeting
(without the presence of the Executive Directors) to discuss and
review the Group’s results for the six months ended 30 September
2020 and recommended the same to the Board for approval.

Other than the above, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discussed the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of three members
including Professor Lu Haitian (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chen Rongsheng and Mr. Liu Xin.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2)  accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report

REEERRBITREEQEH  WRH
RESEFEMAN  BUFRTEFZEL
EREAEARRAZRERE -

EECRARK
ARFERREEZEERNESTERER
B UHEERARRHEBRBREAS LR
BREFREAREFNARBEZH -
HERE

RFERZRREABAEDSE  BR2%ZES
BEATIRARIERLE:

1) Wizns
2 REASEEMMKEEBLT ENKSRE

@ BHENZITE BRETRINERE
MR - Fik (18RALAL) - HEES
BEXEER  MERRGFER:

6) EBEE  BREAREERESNEEREN
M E X B - ae - AHE &R

6 JREEBFABNEMAIESZEREA
T By A

(7)) EHRABEREZTSAREEILIEN
TEENRE RIREAZSRETSR
AIE3ABMKME N BRI R EE
BIYAL:

B ARFWNEFSZLCHRRRERZ
BenEdESEZULMERMAE
At ERR: K&

© HARBEHEMEBEEMNHMLT@E -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERA®RS

Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/
or advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(8)  The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(6) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director
to allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.
13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may
be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of three members
including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Dr.
Luo Tiejian and Professor Lu Haitian.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting to review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the

Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

= 4B 1R 2 3
RIEEE AT ZFANECEBASE - &
E-E - —FZA=Zt+-—HULEFERSLAE
BEKREXMNZ G MEESINT

Number of person(s)

Remuneration bands (HK$) FMEEE (BT AE
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,00121,500,000 2
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 2,000,000 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly
reviews and monitors the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and the senior management, and ensures
its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the auditor, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, received HK$700,000 for provision of audit
service and HK$50,000 for provision of tax filing service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 64 to 71 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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In respect of code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA Function”). Although the
Company did not establish a standalone Internal Audit Department
during the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has put in place
adequate measures to perform the IA Function at different aspects
of the Group as the Company considers that close and regular
supervision by the Executive Directors and senior management, and
the maintenance of internal control guidance and procedures on
the Group’s critical operational cycles could provide sufficient and
effective internal control and risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information and
are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to identify,
evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks
of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of
risk management and internal control for the Group and the Board
had conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year
ended 31 March 2021 through the Audit Committee. Same as last
year’s practice, the Company has engaged an external independent
internal control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control
procedures of the Group at both corporate level and business level
(as agreed by the Audit Committee). The review covered material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions during the year ended 31 March
2021. The internal control report has been circulated to the Audit
Committee for review and discussion. No significant areas of
improvement which are required to be brought to the attention of
the Audit Committee have been revealed.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the IA Function on an annual
basis.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFQO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.

EXERRERFAEEERRANRARER
EAMERREF MEFENCRBE-T
A=t HLFEEBENEZES
SRERBCETFE R - BEFBEHER -
ARRRBIND B AMMEIZER - £FX
ZEERETRAREELEHEREMLALE
BAREEEFETRS BE_T_—F
ZRA=T-HLFE FRARTEEEAE
THIS - BREYY - & AREENRE
REEREE  AMERRECHENEERE
SelHEHNMT® LTEBEANZFERS

FE 18 =k 5 42 SR = & N
ERBERZTESETL -

At - EFSEMERANAEE 2 ABEE
B (BREME 2ERAREZEANER
EEBE)RCER YR SAKEZAE
EREFEEREEREASBULEH -

ERERSTRANBERBEIBE -

MR NBIEARE RN LA AR
mE - ARaE:

. RAERBETIEFEF R BAE KA ([F
HERBEKRMDA R EMRAETZ
X Y AESBINARABEEE
FABYETERLTRREEEM
NN

s REBIFMACHABRERERE
ERREEMIATHEBZET &

EHEREREHEBASEEHL
SNRERZIEFF

EREEEEERLRRE/SARANES
A NEREEHREANNES -

HIUT @I AR A T 2020/21 F i

23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERA®RS

24

Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Ms. Hui Wai Yue, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
undertook no less than 40 hours of relevant professional training
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography is
set out on page 53 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no changes in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (THE “SHAREHOLDERS”) CAN
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit 01, 82/F, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the members concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

° at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

THE PROCEDURES SHAREHOLDERS CAN
USE TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical
details, shall have been lodged to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, at least 7 days before the date of the general
meeting. The lodgement of notice should also be in compliance
with the other requirements of the Listing Rules.
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TEEARRE
3. THE PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES 3. MEEZ=2{EHEHNREF

TO THE BOARD

Any Shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/their
enquiries concerning the Company to the Board may deliver
his/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong with the address at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to
be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others:

(1)
@

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

the Group’s liquidity position;

interest of shareholder;

taxation consideration;

potential effect on creditworthiness;

the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders in
a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our
environmental, social and governance report for the year ended
31 March 2021 for the purpose of demonstrating our efforts on
sustainable developments to our stakeholders.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts, namely environmental
and social.

MAJOR RECENT AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
ENVIRONMENTAL

ISO 50001 : 2018*
Energy Management System
REREEREZR

renewed in April 2020 RZ=T =T F M AFEH
* upgraded in May 2020 R=—Z - T4 H A4
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Family-Friendly Employer
REREREE

ISO 45001 : 2018*
Occupational Health and

Safety Management System
BERERZTZEHEER

Green Organisation

BERs

renewed in April 2020 RZZE_ZF W A E
* upgraded in April 2020 R =Z =T 0 A4

ISO 9001 : 2015*
Quality Management System
EEEERA

Manpower Developer

AT E

BT EBITERBR A F 2020/21 F3f
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting
from our business activities.

A EIE

ZIE S IR R

$$IﬁﬁﬁmILﬁL&$%ﬁﬁm%%
ABHREMERKNEBETYEREREKE

L

To minimise the adverse environmental impacts concerning our site
activities, we shall:

° Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

° Prevent, reduce and eliminate pollution or any other
degradation of environment resulting from the production
process or from the use of goods and services.

° Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources.

° Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material
in our design and construction process.

° Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in
an environmentally responsible manner.

° Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

° Obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses,
registrations and permits.

° Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors.
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Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and
implementation.

Commit to continual improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group’s environmental management system has been accredited
by Accredited Certification International Limited with ISO 14001 :

2015 and ISO 50001

. 2018 certifications.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:
The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations:

a.

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132
of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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A(l) EMISSIONS A(l)

EMISSIONS EF &7

(i) Since the Group did not have town gas fuel and town gas (i)
consumption during the year ended 31 March 2021, therefore
no emission data is available.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nitrogen Oxides (if)
(NOx), Sulfur Oxides (SOx), and Particulate Matter (PM) emitted
from the consumption of towngas and the Group’s motor
vehicles are shown as below:

BER

HRBE_Z_—F=A=+—HIF
J& 7N 5 (8] 30 B 0 T MR R S MR ROB #E
BUE R R BUR -

RBE_Z_—F=A=+—HIL*F
B WhmMRERERAEETEI R
ALY WAty RBETFWIIR
m

2021 2020
emission emission Increase

—F-—F —T-TF
B E PR E &N

(approximately (approximately
in gram) in gram) Percentage
Types of Emissions BEm 2B (89%) (#)52) BSH
NOx =Rl 1,092.1 787.3 38.7
SOx wmaty 32,081.5 13,597.8 135.9
PM BIE 80.4 58.0 38.7

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group are mainly AEBENAERE(REREDERETEE
generated from scope 3. The Group always aims to reduce waste EEE-EHE AEE-BERORLEEY
and minimise the consumption of electricity in order to tackle GHG EEHRAE  UEBFRBEZEREENRME

emissions issue. o

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended

31 March 2021.

TRITEMREBE_T_—F=A=1+—

B IEFE e R 2 5 -

2021 2020 Increase/
Emission Emission (decrease)
—E=-—F T -TF
W= Hepr g M GE D)
(approximately (approximately
in tonnes in tonnes
of CO,) of CO,) Percentage
(=&t (=& btk
Scope of GHG BREREzEHE HE 49 WE 21) 1% 49 WE B0 B
Scope 1 — direct emission FEHE-EEHERY 4,336.6 1,845.7 135.0
Scope 2 — indirect emission FoHE-BEERY 261.3 150.3 74.0
Scope 3 — other indirect FoEE-EMmEE
emission B 1,954.2 43,488.0 (96.0)
Total (a) 45t (a) 6,552.1 45,484.0 86.0
Total average floor area B EHEE
(approximately in m2) (b) (CEAAREED (o) 56,915 23,247 144.8
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) mE(ZfLhnE
(d)=(a)/(b) 37 3K) (d)=(@)/(0) 0.1 20 (95.0)
HAZARDOUS WASTE BEEREY

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business
does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during

our construction process.

BEFERAAN  HABGERMANEZERET
BREPLRBELEFMNEREEREEY -

BT EBITERBR A F 2020/21 F3f
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, the total construction waste disposed of
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 172,840 tonnes
(2020: 66,924 tonnes) and approximately 190,620 kg (2020: 72,120
kg) respectively. Our Group always tries our best endeavor to recycle
practicable construction material in our design and construction
process.

CONTRIBUTION TO GREEN BUILDINGS

Most of our customers had registered BEAM (Building Environment
Assessment Method) Plus for their new building projects. Being one
of the contractors, we actively seek opportunities to increase our
contribution on the green building projects. We closely work with
clients to support their projects in attaining the target BEAM Plus
rating. The Group also encourages our employees to undertake
trainings on green building to enable the Group contributes more in
the area of green building in the future.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust REBNRERECE THEE - F BN EEK
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our T AE AN AR B B2 + LA BUR A ) B 2 ALY
construction sites. MER o

-

Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly BN REEME THSJERZETEE
purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of B M ER RIB IR & BB IARBERUR 2 -
Stage lIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there is no material BMEMES RESAAAL  REBEE-T=—
non-compliance with the applicable local rules and regulations relating to FZA=T—HLEFE RHABEAFTEIL
air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land discharges, and generation MEBEEEREARBYN - BEREHR - E
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in all material aspects during IKEE R T s AR EEBEER BEERE
the year ended 31 March 2021. ZYHRBEERZHERRBR -

HIUT @I AR A T 2020/21 F i
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A(ll) USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policies and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and treated
for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction process.
In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the energy consumption by
type in total of the Group are showed as below:

Al EiR{EH

AEEER TBETEANETIZERRE
B K SOl R OR c RRER R —
RERFEENDLE  AEECERRRE
BRERARRA - AR ADIR B KRB
EEREENEIR - flan - RASHERK
SREEETHETREK  BREEMNETR
RHREBEEM - 1 AEEREFINEE
158 7K AR AR D A 7K

HRASEZZEURNEL  #RMARBLSE
SXERKRTEL EEAME -

RBE_ZT-_—F=A=+—RHIEFE" K
SEZEBREDMERERAEI IR :

2021 usage 2020 usage Increase/

—EZ—F —E-THE Unit/total (decrease)

FEHE FHE floor areas* S GRA)

Direct/Indirect HiE HiE (approximately)  (approximately) Bf Percentage

Energy by Type RERziESE (#9) (#9) 4845 h AR BaL

Ol ¥R 407.8 423.7 kWh/m? (3.8)
TFREF,F75K

Electricity BN 8.5 12.0 kWh/m? (29.2)
FREF,F 5K

* Total floor area was 56,915 m? in 2021 (2020: 23,247 m?)

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within our
Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further disclosed
in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources” below.
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TOTAL PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Due to the business nature of our Group, we believe that it is not
applicable to our Group.

A(li)  THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal negative
impact to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
(include design, review, monitoring performance) as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Comply with the environmental aspects of the applicable legal
requirements and the other requirements to which the Group
subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles
throughout our business; and

o Continual improvement.

The Group has been awarded Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification, Energywi$e — Certificate — Basic Level, by Environmental

Campaign Committee.
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The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within REBEZEFBTIIEHBARNEBANLEH
our Group mainly through the following measures: EREHRIZEIHS:

° Office power saving: Recommendation to turn off
lights and air-conditioning when not in use and log
off computer and turn off the screen when not in
use or during lunch hours.

s MIOEHE EREREFTERRARSREREE
ERREFALNEFTEREMRSRN FRHBEE
HEKKEEHBTRE -

° Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for document review purposes, reduction in printing
and use of recycled paper.

EARMA: EAEBREMERRGWBE XM - B ENLEBREREDUAE -

38 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR #HERERERE

° Reduction of the wusage of bottled water:
Recommendation to use reusable cups to reduce the
use of plastic bottles.

o RAEREEK: ZRERABRKEUERDER
B -

=

o LED T8 lamps: Implementation of LED T8 lamps phase by phase for environmental protection purpose.

o T8 LED& : DB ER L H T8 LEDB N EBIRERME -

C -

° Noise control: Site working hours restricted to 7:00
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. (except for those construction sites .
being granted construction noise permit).

o Sound level meters are used in construction sites to
monitor the noise level.

o Install noise barriers in construction sites to reduce
the noise emission during construction.

s RBEEBEHR-HBIMRERESFLIFILEE®R L7
IE (18 7 b B8 08 4% 32 SR 1R F RF AT REBR AN o

e RUBRARSHERREE -
e MMBLTERSEERURDHEIRABRSHER - -
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B. SOCIAL
B() EMPLOYMENT

EMPLOYMENT

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2021, the Group had 4 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we
did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.

The Group has been recognised as a Family-Friendly Employer since

2014 by the Family Council. The Group was also recognised as a
Manpower Developer in 2018 by Employees Retraining Board.
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 170 (2020: 132) employees.
Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers in Hong
Kong. Below are certain key charts in relation to our employment

aspects.

2021 Employee distribution by gender
TEC-FRrRERESS2ETILHA

® Male
B

Female

g i

2021 Employee distribution by age
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31-45
® 46-60
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2020 Employee distribution by gender
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2020 Employee distribution by age
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B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY

-

=

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safe working
environment which maintains a high standard of safety, health and
welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measures to
protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and
to take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to
the nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded as
the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded 3 reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: zero).

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) poses a huge
challenge to health in Hong Kong, the Group has implemented
several measures to protect our staff:

— Al public area would be performed disinfection on timely basis;
— Provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;

— Request each staff to report their health status everyday;

— Provide flexible working hours for staff to avoid crowd; and

—  Request each Department Head to monitor the health status
of its staff on timely basis.
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INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SAFETY TRAINING
Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions.

Our Safety Department is responsible for advising and assisting
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety
information and training.

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with
our policy and safety procedures.

To ensure our Safety Policy is well implemented, we will provide
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action,
including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety
policy and requirements.

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel
positively implement the Safety Policy and make every effort to meet
the target of zero accident.
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Qur Corporate Safety Management Committee updates our Safety Policy
annually in accordance with the latest legislation and safety regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system has
been certified in compliance with ISO 45001 : 2018 by Accredited
Certification International Limited.

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group provided not
less than 16,000 trainings hours to our employees, especially for
occupational safety trainings.

B(IV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.
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B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has been assessed and certified by Accredited Certification
International Limited that our quality management system, which
governs our daily operation for quality control and improvement, had
met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 : 2015.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
have been formally notified and required to comply with our policy
and safety procedure.

The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(VI) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation services
in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and services we provide have
limited relationship with advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the
Group is highly committed to delivering quality services to our customers
through flexibility and capability in providing foundation designs,
contributing professional advices and making appropriate adjustments.
We tackle any issue raised by our customers by rectifying it within a
reasonable time and ensuring our customers’ satisfaction.
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DATA PRIVACY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights. We have marketed our business in Hong
Kong using [ as our trademark which was properly registered in
Hong Kong in 2015. The Group will only use lawful software licenses
for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in our staff
manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential information.

B(VIl) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of
our staff.

A formal whistle-blowing policy was adopted in the second quarter
of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our staff during the year ended 31 March 2021.

B(VIIl) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
donated to certain charitable events held by the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals and donated to Chinese Methodist Church.
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As a Family-Friendly Employer, we always show our kindness and
care to our staff. There are written policies in our staff manual,
including the education sponsorship program to our staff, a long
service award to our staff for working over 5 years, a continuous 6
days’ paternity leave for each confinement of our male staff’s spouse/
partner, a continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for our staff, a birthday
leave for our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave
for our staff for social responsibilities purposes.

In order to comply with anti-epidemic measures, the Group did not
hold any corporate events during the year ended 31 March 2021.
Instead, the Group distribute gifts and coupons to its staff at various
festivals.
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Mr. Chen Rongsheng (“Mr. Chen”), aged 51, is an entrepreneur
in The People Republic of China (the “PRC”) with his business
and investment involved in various sectors which include integrated
circuit card and electronic labels, e-commerce, fintech and virtual
game platform. He obtained an EMBA degree jointly awarded by
the National Taiwan University in Taiwan and the Fudan University
in the PRC in January 2014. Mr. Chen has more than 17 years of
experience in information technology. He has worked in New Doone
Technology Company Limited* (¥R AR %GR /AF]), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Tatwah Smartech Company Limited (18N EZE Rl
&1 B BRAF]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002512) and is principally engaged in the development
of radiofrequency identification technology such as integrated circuit
cards and electronic labels since 2001 with his current position as
the chief executive officer. Since 2014, Mr. Chen has been appointed
as a director and the chief executive of Tatwah Smartech Company
Limited. Mr. Chen also invests in companies which are principally
engaged in e-commerce, fintech or virtual game platform in the PRC.

Mr. Guan Jingdong (“Mr. Guan”), aged 57, has over 25 years
of experience in banking and finance. He obtained a Bachelor of
Finance and Taxation Degree from the Heilongjiang University in
the PRC in December 2003. In April 1993, he joined the Branch
Credit Management Department of China Everbright Bank. Later in
February 2001, he was promoted to be the assistant of the branch
general manager. He was further promoted to be the vice branch
general manager in January 2002. In March 2009 he served as the
branch general manager until July 2014 when he left China Everbright
bank. After leaving China Everbright Bank, he was employed by
Runxing Financial Leasing Company Limited* (BE@EHR EHR A

A]) as the vice president from July 2014 to November 2017. From
October 2017 to April 2018 he worked in Tatwah Smartech Company
Limited* (FF 1L ZE R e B R DB R A F]) as the vice president.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Luo Tiejian (“Dr. Luo”), aged 58. He obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Computer Software from the Guangxi University in the
PRC in July 1984. He then obtained a Master’s Degree in Computer
Application from the 6th Research Institute of China Electronics
Industry* (FEIEFILEEZESHITA) in the PRC in March 1990
and a Doctorate Degree in Computer Software and Theory from
the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (T B R} £z A £2)
in the PRC in January 2001. He worked in the Guangxi University
from 1984 to 2000 and was later transferred to the University of
Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2001. He has been a professor in
the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences since 2001. He has
rich experience and achievements in machine intelligence, software
systems, learning science and information planning. He took charge
of and completed more than 20 national and corporate projects. He
has published over 100 academic papers and 1 English monograph.
He holds more than 30 software copyrights and invention patents.
He was also granted the first prize of excellent instructor in the
“National Intelligent Design Competition for College Students*” from
the Chinese Association for Artificial Intelligence and the Zhu-Li-Yuehua
Outstanding Teacher Award* from the Chinese Academy of Sciences.

Professor Lu Haitian (“Prof. Lu”), aged 41, has over 14 years
of experience in accounting and law. He obtained a Bachelor of
International Economic Law Degree from the Nanjing University in the
PRC in June 2001, a Master of Laws Degree from the University of
Liverpool in the United Kingdom in December 2002, and a Doctor
of Philosophy from the National University of Singapore in June
2007. He served at the School of Accounting and Finance in the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University first as a visiting lecturer in law
from September 2005 to June 2007, Assistant professor in law from
June 2007 to June 2012, Associate Professor in law from July 2012
to June 2018, and Professor in law since July 2018. Since January
2018, Prof. Lu has been appointed as the Associate Dean (External
Relations and Development) in the Facility of Business of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Prof. Lu has been appointed the director
of Chinese Mainland Affairs Office since February 2020.

Prof. Lu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as MelcolLot
Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8198) since
July 2017.

*

For identification purposes only
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Mr. Liu Xin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 43, has over 18 years of experience
in investment consultancy and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor
of Accountancy Degree from the Jinan University in the PRC in June
2001. He worked in PriceWaterhouseCoopers for 8 years with his
last position as the senior manager in the Advisory Department. He
then served in Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Company
Limited* (E/BEE25 8 (5E)BRAF]) (a subsidiary of Fosun
International Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 656)) from July 2011 to September 2015 as the chief financial
officer of Fosun Kinzon Capital. From October 2015 to February
2019, he was the chief operating officer and a member of the
investment committee of Shoreline Capital Management Ltd. Since
March 2019, he has been the chief operating officer of Vision Plus
Capital. Mr. Liu is a registered accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since December 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul (“Mr. Yu”), aged 71, is an executive director
of a major subsidiary of our Group, K. H. Foundations Limited (the
“K. H. Foundations”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
marketing work and contract strategy of the K. H. Foundations and
is appointed as an authorised signatory under specialist contractor
licensing. Mr. Yu has also been appointed as the Technical Director
to act for the purpose of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for K. H. Foundations. He has over 40 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu founded K. H. Foundations in 1985 and has
been a director of K. H. Foundations since then. Over the 35 years
of directorship in K. H. Foundations, Mr. Yu had the opportunity to
go through various development and construction projects of both
the public sector and the private sector in Hong Kong including, but
not limited to schools, hotels, infrastructure projects and Government
buildings.

Mr. Yu graduated from the Syracuse University in New York, the
United States and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering
and a Master’s Degree in Engineering Administration in May 1973
and December 1974, respectively. In 1981, Mr. Yu was a director of
the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and was subsequently elected as
chairman of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1988 and served
as the chairman until 1989.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Yu was appointed by the Hong Kong Government to sit in various
advisory bodies since 1982. He was appointed as a member of the
Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries from
1982 to 2003, a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board from
1992 to 1996, a member of the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary
Board Panel from 1993 to 1996, a member of the Council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Education from 1994 to 1998, a member of
the Administrative Appeals Board from 1994 to 2000, a member
of the Hospital Authority from 2001 to 2009, the chairman of the
Hospital Governing Committee of the Tuen Mun Hospital from 2004
to 2014 and a member of the Advisory Board of the Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals until 2019. Currently, he is a member of the
Hospital Governing Committee of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan
Yuk Hospital. He was awarded Justice of the Peace (Non-official) by
the Hong Kong Government in 1989 and is a member in the Most
Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 2007, Mr. Yu was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government.
He was admitted as a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Builders and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers in
May 1997.

He is currently an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00513), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 54, is an executive
director of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Yeung is primarily responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the K. H. Foundations,
including daily operations, business development, strategic planning
and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 20 years of experience
in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He took part in the
foundation works and superstructure construction works in
construction projects of both the public sector and the private sector
in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools, hotels, residential
premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in
2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during
the same period. He is also the director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited, K. H. Machinery Limited and K. H. Piling & Engineering
Limited since each of their incorporation date, respectively. He has
been appointed as a director of Tactful Building Company Limited
(“Tactful”) since July 1993. Tactful is a Registered General Building
Contractor, and is mainly involved in building construction works.
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Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Professional Diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
Degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’s Degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession.
He was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992.

Ms. Chan Lai Kuen (“Ms. Chan”), aged 57, is an executive
director of K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and account management aspects and as
well as the corporate finance functions in K. H. Foundations. Ms.
Chan has over 20 years of experience in accounting, taxation and
financial assignments especially with companies in the Hong Kong
construction industry. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2006 and was
appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during the same period.

Ms. Chan was the assistant accountant of Wing Fai International
Limited from 1994 to 1998 and has been the accountant of Tactful
since 1998. She is currently a senior accounting manager of Tactful.
Tactful is a Registered General Building Contractor, and is mainly
involved in building construction works.

Ms. Chan obtained her Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy from the
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as The City University of
Hong Kong) in November 1992. She is a Certified Public Accountant
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2000. She has also been a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2004.
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Mr. Wong Wai Nam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 58, serves as the general
manager of K. H. Foundations. He is responsible for overseeing the
technical designs of foundation works and technical department
of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Wong joined our Group as director —
technical in March 2014 and has over 30 years of experience in
the foundation, construction and engineering industry. Mr. Wong
obtained a higher certificate in civil engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
November 1986. Mr. Wong became a Registered Structural Engineer
in Hong Kong in August 2000 and a registered inspector in Hong
Kong in May 2012. He has been admitted as a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since September 1998 and as
a Chartered Engineer of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the
United Kingdom, since February 1998. Mr. Wong was employed as
technical director of Meinhardt (C&S) Limited from 1992 to 2014.
Mr. Wong was previously employed in the foundation, construction
and engineering industry with several companies and the Housing
Department, the executive arm of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
between 1983 and 1992.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hui Wai Yue (“Ms. Hui”), aged 44, has over 19 years of
experience in company secretarial and tax services industry. She
obtained a Bachelor of Accountancy in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 1999. She worked as the Tax Accountant |
in the Tax Department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
1999 to May 2000. She was then employed by PKF Hong Kong (an
audit firm) as Tax Manager from May 2000 to August 2011 and was
transferred to PKF Tax and Business Consultants Limited as tax
director in September 2011 until her resignation in 2014. Since June
2016 she has been employed by MCGI Consultancy Limited as its
principal in the company secretarial and tax services department.
Ms. Hui is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since April 2005.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 11
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this Directors’
Report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting
from our business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group will also review
its environmental policies and performance from time to time in order
to minimise the adverse environmental impacts from our operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent work
environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in order to
maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the

industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

Save as those disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no other material dispute or argument
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers and
subcontractors during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 28 to 47 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and
other relevant laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned,
there were no material breaches of or non-compliance with the
relevant rules and regulations by our Group that have significant
impacts on the business and operations of our Group during the
year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 27.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 163.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 164 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted,
pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 February 2016 which became
effective and unconditional upon the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2016, for the purpose of
providing incentive and/or to reward eligible participants (who include
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisors, consultants, other
contractors, business partners of the Group) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group. Unless
otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as from the
date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 40,000,000 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date. The overall
limit on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of not
less than 5 business days. HK$1 shall be payable by the participants
on acceptance of the offer of the Scheme.
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The exercisable period of the share options granted is determinable
by the board of directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. The subscription price for the shares in respect
of which options are granted is determinable by board of directors,
but shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2021,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$71,014,000 (2020: approximately HK$80,726,000).
The share premium account of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Articles and provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able
to pay its debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 86.1% of the Group’s total revenue
and revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 25.5% of the Group’s total revenue during the
year ended 31 March 2021. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 88.8% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 64.7% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the largest
supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the largest subcontractor
of the Group accounted for approximately 56.1% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 18.7% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2021 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)
Mr. Guan Jingdong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Luo Tiejian
Professor Lu Haitian
Mr. Liu Xin

In accordance with articles 108 and 109 of the Articles, Professor Lu
Haitian and Mr. Liu Xin, as the Independent Non-executive Directors,
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 48 to 53 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the year and as
at the date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which
the Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a
Director, and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which
he is acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

EZENED

1954 KL AR I A R B13.51B(1) 16 T L
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party
Transactions” in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

EENXS  ZHHEHZ
2=

BREFSEREPIHERERS ]| —HREA
BTSRRI FESO R R T R 5 I R IR EE 41 -
MEESXESCHEEBNARRZER
A AR FHEAI KB AR HERMERFR
AEFRNI LI EAEEXBMEBEELZ
EARS  ZHAANPEERIEEEESE
ANzt -

EENGFEERB2ES

REBEE-TE-_—F=-A=+—HBLEFEEH
EAFREY MEEEIARSE2ETHE
AL (EER ETRAD R E (s aE ) A&
EXSEEREERFIEFTHREE T

s
ZS o

I

EalE

AR A AR % B A A 2

RIE-_—F=ZA=+—B EERALQA
S HEBHEE(EREREFLBMEGRIIEXV
BB  HERDREFTEERERE
FE M EGRPIEI2GATFENE LM
SR LRR > HIRBRETRIAS
THEARB MBI FH S FORBIT

() RAQXTEERNBER

Number of
shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
Fits @&
EEHA EaitE EERGHEAE IREBSE
Mr. Chen Rongsheng Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 75%

(“Mr. Chen”) (Note)
PR R B2 5% AE ([ BR 58 4 1) (P 3E)

corporation
XEEEER
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(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of (i) R#EBZEZERNGTAE
associated corporation

Number of Percentage of
shares held shareholding

Name of associated in associated in associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest corporation corporation
RHEBEB R EE
EEHE HEEENETE EEHE Fr¥s g0 & B REaSE
Mr. Chen Sendlink Limited Interest in a controlled 1 100%
corporation
FR %% A& Sendlink Limited R EEER
Mr. Chen (Note) Blessing Well Beneficial owner 1 100%
BR 5 A (B 5%) Z=RE EmEBA
Note: Bt 3T
These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by ZERMDABREFA MEIE B Sendlink
Sendlink Limited. Hence, Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested Limited 2 8% A - At - RIBFZHFRBAEK
in the shares of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As fl » Sendlink Limited # R 1E R B B AR
Sendlink Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, consequently, Mr. Chen is NEIRG R B Em o B Sendlink Limited
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Blessing HREERERR  BUIRBEEHFRHAEIE -
Well under the SFO. BREEWBIERBEFRANRATRS P H#
B

|

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERERAAA 2=

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the following interests and short positions of R —F=ZA=+—8" U TARER
5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company A& D M AHRRR 1D 5% A £ 2 m KK B
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the BERSRARRREZES K P EKGIE336

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: GEEBEGF HEaELMA:
Number of Percentage of
shares held/ interest in our
Name Nature of interest interested Company
Fi¥s HBE HARQE
HE AR EEtE EEREEE HENESL
Blessing Well Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%
’iE EmBAEA
Sendlink Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
Sendlink Limited (Fff 1) XELEER
Mr. Chen (Note 2) Iﬂterest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
BR 5% A (Bt 5£2) R AEE R
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Notes: B 5
1: These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink 10 ZERHHBERE - MEIE A Sendlink

Limited. Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

2: These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Sendlink Limited is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As Sendlink Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company through Sendlink Limited and Blessing Well under
the SFO. Mr. Chen is not a concert party under the Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Buy-backs.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure of
Interests” in this annual report, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has
been entered into or existed during the year.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as those disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, there are no other material events occurring after
31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “2021 AGM”) will be held on
a date to be fixed by the Board, and a notice convening the 2021
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued capital are held by public as at the date of this
annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group made charitable
contribution totalling HK$138,000 (2020: Nil).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited shall retire in the 2021
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited as Auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2021
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H.
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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Key audit matters are those matters that,

matters we identified are:

1) Revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts; and

2) Provision for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables 2)

and contract assets

in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit

ARECESHESREBEESFCEXHE > AR
BAHHESEMBERRIBRRRERL
FHE -REFERBSEREERGSNH
BERLRHASARREE MEFITeHZRSE
FEREHENZER - BFICBRE
REER:

1) BEESNZWEFENER: R

BEHRUHIA RGN EENTEIIE
EER(BHMEEBRDIERR

Key Audit Matter
AREZSEHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERPRERRERSENSZE

Revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts

BEAHZWS R AT ER

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(g),
critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(c) and
relevant disclosure in note 7 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

LR A BRI TN EAX S FHE - K iE5(c) E
ZHER FERZRNZTIHEE -

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts amounted
to approximately HK$933,797,000 for the year ended
31 March 2021.
HE_T-_—F=A=1+—HILtFEX EBESBEKREEX
B #92 W & 49 75933,797,000/ T

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the input method based on direct measurements
of the contract costs incurred to value the contract work
performed.

SRR ERABAZERHEELSAOKAEETK
BHNIREBENEETEREHEELHER -

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation
of revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts included:

gﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ@#ﬁ@ﬁéﬁi%ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁ%Zﬁﬁ

obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
BRHAEEERTEEINm  EEMABXEEHL
WEITRIBERZ TR :

corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such
as customers’ correspondence;
%@%ﬁ%%%%%@@ﬁ%%%ﬁ%@@%ﬁ
Zy__] ’

examining, on samples basis, the contracts and
oertificatio\ns of work performed;
NHEREEBESSARE TR TEERSE

performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;
MESEENKRETRERS

discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs to complete, including taking into account the
historical accuracy of such estimates;

AEm R TR E IR B AR S AD B AR IR TR FEOBI K AR
ZIEE PREEERBEBABER BT ERMG:
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Key Audit Matter
HAREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMRERSTENSZ

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
and profit recognition involves a significant degree of
judgement made by management, with estimates being

made to:

BHREBcAKEE - B E A et Fom ) iR E

ERRBEZHE  YHATERELERR:

= assess the total contract costs;

FHERE KA

— assess the stage of completion of the contract;

AEEHZ TR

— assess the revenue and costs associated with

variation orders;

AIEETIEEE AR W E R

—  appropriately provide for liquidated damages for
delays in completion of the construction works;

and

RIERTENEETIRZEDSFEHEERE X

—  appropriately provide for loss making contracts.

REBEBRENIELESBE -

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report

comparing the percentage of completion for contracts
to the proportion of contract costs for works
performed to date bear to the total estimated contract
costs;
2ELSETK IR NEAMEE S KA
BBl AT A S

using the knowledge obtained from the above testing,
assessing whether provisions for liquidated damages
or loss making contracts made by management were
appropriate; and

ERB Ll ASAEScRM  AHEEBRENS
AEEANIFL 2 BBREAE K&

assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”.

UHEEEFER IRETREANCOR S EET
ERBMBRELNBISRIZTL, ORI ER
RAE o
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Key Audit Matter
HAREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMRERSTENSZ

Provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets

REZFBRURERSHNEENTHHEFEHRTRERE

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(t),
critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(f) and
relevant disclosure in notes 6(b), 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R E R IR MW 4089 E X &5 B F - KT a5()
HY 8 AR F ERR AR AT E6b) - 2152289 16 B #

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets were
approximately HK$81,624,000 (net of allowance for ECL
of approximately HK$237,000) and HK$309,034,000 (net
of allowance for ECL of approximately HK$2,763,000)
respectively.

RZZE——F=A=+—H0 - EBE5EEFEKKERK
AHBEMREES B A 481,624,000 T (A& 1k 78
H {5 & &5 18 48 5 £)237,0007% 7T) % 309,034,0007% 7T (4%
M EHE B B 18 B 5 42,763,000/ 7T) °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amounts of trade receivables
and contract assets to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant judgement and estimate
made by the directors in determining the provision for
ECL on trade receivables and contract assets.
HREZBRBURIBELRAGNEEN S RHFES MK MK
MEBEAREERETEIRRREREGNEEN
EREEERBEGRMELERABN MG HEF
KEREEBNREREREE -

Our procedures in relation to the provision for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets included:
ESHBEBESERRERSHEENFHEEBERHE
REHBZEFEE:

—  Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

— FEEEES  EBENREREEBEMAAM
EERABESNORS  BITBERRETRA:

= With the assistance of auditor’s expert, assessing
the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models by
examining the model input used by management to
form such judgements, including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information including the economic variables and
assumptions used in each of the economic scenarios
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising ECL;

— ERBMERNOBHT BEMBREEERTLKEA
BHE TR AR ABRBEUNE SEEREBHE
EFEREANSEN  ERASBEROBIRNE
B FAAAEBEXERERNE LB KA
EHEEHERELESRARANREZERRKR
RIEERAE  RAEERANREREEENER
EHREEBHERFLIRKRE:

— Reviewed settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2021; and

— HHABE - F="A=+—HNEFRKFIER
BREENMBRFEARENEREBERL &

— Assessing the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the Group’s credit
risk exposure.

— HEREEMBHRANELNE SEEEERR
wix (1 48 B8 &0 45 5% -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06633

3/F., Winbase Centre,
208 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeEEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T-_—F-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E—F —EZTF
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
Bt & T FATT
Revenue U = 7 933,797 374,903
Cost of services rendered Fr 4 4 AR 7% B AR (892,144) (334,061)
Gross profit ER 41,653 40,842
Other income H b e A 8 12,699 3,545
Administrative and other operating 77 B & H h 48 4 B %
expenses (43,626) (34,627)
Provision for expected credit loss 7L B 5 FE 7k 18
(“ECL”) on trade receivables, other — E b JEUKTE K & 49
receivables and contract assets BEMNBHEEEE
([TE8izE /BB
SR BB (2,142) (1,521)
Profit from operations RERBEF 8,584 8,239
Finance costs Bl & K AR 10 (7,513) (7,230)
Profit before tax Bk %54 AU i R 1,071 1,009
Income tax Fr {3 % 11 - —
Profit and total comprehensive AR BEAEBEER
income for the year attributable to  EFI R Z U5 B 5
owners of the Company 12 1,071 1,009
HK cents HK cents
-2 &L
Earnings per share BRETF
— Basic — HAR 16(a) 0.3 0.3
— Diluted — e 16(b) N/AFE A N/A iE A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B R &

As at 31 March 2021
R-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WRREE 17 42,158 24,896
Deposit and prepayment for a life AZRBRENIRE &
insurance policy AT RIE 18 9,274 9,003
Right-of-use assets CREEE 19 19,521 32,373
70,953 66,272
Current assets REBBEE
Inventories FE 20 6,024 4,167
Trade receivables g 5 E WGk IE 21 81,624 41,098
Contract assets EHEE 22 309,034 207,707
Prepayments, deposits and TERNFIE Zek
other receivables H th & W 3R I8 23 172,504 12177
Pledged bank deposits BB RITE R 24 36,353 16,308
Bank and cash balances R17 MR & KR 24 6,400 71,062
611,939 352,519
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and retention payables B RAREREMRE S 25 372,025 158,725
Contract liabilities EHEE 22 2,112 5,272
Accruals and other payables FERT B R & E b e R E 26 13,316 9,516
Lease liabilities HeEaE 27 9,976 9,745
Bank borrowings, secured RITER - BT 28 97,154 49,740
494,583 232,998
Net current assets MENEEFRE 117,356 119,521
Total assets less current HEERRBEE
liabilities 188,309 185,793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBMRRE
As at 31 March 2021
RZZTZ—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B =E T F# T
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Lease liabilities HESE 27 1,928 483
Other borrowing, unsecured H b g5k - M 29 92,894 92,894
94,822 93,377
NET ASSETS BERHE 93,487 92,416
Capital and reserves BAXRGE
Share capital [i% < 31 4,000 4,000
Reserves 1t 34 89,487 88,416
TOTAL EQUITY s 93,487 92,416

KREEGN_T_—FNA=THILELH
NTEEREREE:

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2021 and signed
on its behalf by:

Chen Rongsheng Guan Jingdong

P Bt 22 FAEF R
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESE HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-Z-—F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOE A AELL
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium profits equity
BAx KBGHEE BEFN #=EEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT FAETT FAETT
(note 31)  (note 34(b)
(Bt 5E31) (BT #E34(0))
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—-NEWA—H 4,000 84,408 3,004 91,407
Profit and total comprehensive income & A3 F & 2 [ U 25 4258
for the year — — 1,009 1,009
As at 31 March 2020 and RZE-_ZEF=FA=+—H
1 April 2020 MZZE-FFWHA—H 4,000 84,403 4,013 92,416
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 3% Al I % T U 25 4858
for the year — — 1,071 1,071
As at 31 March 2021 RZZE_—&%=A=+—H 4,000 84,403 5,084 93,487
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T-_—F-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FiEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZFHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 3 A1 s A 1,071 1,009
Adjustments for: AT SEELRAE
Depreciation on property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 12 4,579 4,622
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 12 5,478 6,745
Finance costs B & AR 10 7,923 8,091
(Gain)/loss on termination of leases BIEHE W) /B8 12 2 3
Written off of contract assets MEEHNEE 12 4,693 4,567
Provision for ECL on trade receivables ~ sLE RN FH BN AL EE
and contract assets MEBEEBBRTIREE 1,052 1,521
Provision for ECL on other receivables st Efth e BN A ZE
BREFREE 1,090 -
Imputed interest income HEE R ERA 8 (5,962) (2,981)
Premium charges on a life insurance —DASRBREZRE
policy 120 -
Interest income A B A 8 (780) (99)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and ~ HE¥E - #E R REH
equipment, net W58 12 = (324)
Operating profit before working capital 21 & ¢ & &) a1 & 2 % 5
changes 19,262 23,158
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM, B (1,857) 2,264
Increase in trade receivables E 5 e W sk 1 n (40,718) (25,398)
Increase in contract assets BHREERM (106,880) (63,741)
Increase in prepayments, BERE e kEM
deposits and other receivables JRE L ZX TB 42 0 (161,071) (2,500)
Increase in trade and retention payables & 5 & 208 & fEf
1R E £ 10 213,300 72,220
(Decease)/increase in contract liabilities & #1 & 1& Ci 4) /3 1N (3,160) 4,741
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FE& & A R H fth fE
other payables HIBL I, CR D) 3,800 (1,929)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (FiR) /ELB 4 (77,324) 8,815
Interest paid BERFE (1,622) (1,501)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE (339) (721)
Net cash (used in)/generated from wETES (TR, EE
operating activities e 58 (79,285) 6,593
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FREBHETRER
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F§ —E-FHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3 TiERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZFDHLRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F & 43 95
Payment for a life insurance policy 321‘1‘/\?1 1%$ - (9,008)
Payment for right-of-use assets TREEE 1‘JL = 36(a)(iii) (1,710) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BBRZ
equipment 17 (1,307) (2,371)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B R 1717 5R3E N (20,045) (6,094)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETHMARS FH (23,019) (17,373)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHREAE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings raised BEERTER 36(b) 205,030 152,915
Repayment of bank borrowings BRERTER 36(b) (168,359) (130,591)
Principal elements of lease payments HERFAL TS 36(b) (9,772) (12,300)
Net cash from financing activities MEFTBAERSFHE 26,899 10,024
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBeZSENEL BHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (75,4095) (756)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNNRE EREEFEY
beginning of year 68,616 69,372
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNBERASEEDY
end of year (6,789) 68,616
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBEeSENAIT
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE & 6,400 71,062
Bank overdrafts RITEX 28 (13,189) (2,446)
(6,789) 68,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR

ClE R e

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE

—E- A=+ —HILtFE
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that, Blessing Well Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is
the immediate holding company of the Company; and Sendlink
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of foundation services and
leasing of machinery in Hong Kong. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to consolidated
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—FZA=+—RHLEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of all new and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE—_ZT-_—F=-A=+—HILFE

80

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

(o) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN

ISSUE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied any new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2020.
These new and revised HKFRSs include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS

16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase2?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018—
20202

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWK EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_T-_—F=-A=1+—RALFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(o) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

REANFET R BIEETER
B ¥ 3k 5 2 B (48

(b) B 21 H KA KA F
R MARERI BB W T
HAER|(E)

i R-E-_=F—A—Hzkz%H
6 9 F JE 5 R A R

2 RZZEZ—F—A—Hzx 2R
1A B 4F 5 HA R AE AR

8 RZZE=——F—A—HBziz#’&R
1A 0 6 FE HA R A K

g RETASMIZERBNTE
HA R A AR

5 R-ZE-_TFEXA—Az2%H
1A ) 4F 5 HA 8 AE AR

8 RZZEZ—FMHA—Hzk 2R
1A 0 6 FE HA R A K

ARBEZAMEANT LEE
RIREMBREENET ALK
KIre8EaMBRREKE

By 488
ATE o

4, BEREETBE

ZEEAMBRERTIVIZE L KAE R
i’j{% o

BT AT I EER B/ &|
REBGERETHREE A THE
EEERERAASE ST BRRNAE
R AT o p R K AR E A A T 3
BREMN  ABRRGEFHESH
BHERBE AR TR FEST -

REZEREMBBRRHERANEKR
SEBUREINWMAT o

BT EBIERGR A F 2020/21 F3f

81



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—FZA=+—RHLEE

82

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each

entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(CONTINUED)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

(c) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Furniture and equipment 20%
Plant and machinery 7% to 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(d) LEASES

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease

term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term, upon exercising purchase options, the cost
of the relevant right-of-use assets and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to property, plant and equipment/the
carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset
is transferred to property, plant and equipment.
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(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16
and recognised the change in consideration as if

it were not a lease modification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@

(©)

LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i) The Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(t) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to work
on real estate assets under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction activities create
or enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to-
cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs.
The directors consider that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations under
HKFRS 15.
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CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers for
construction of properties based on achieving a series
of performance-related milestones. When a particular
milestone is reached the customer is sent a relevant
statement of work signed by a third party assessor and
an invoice for the related milestone payment. The Group
will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to
date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There is
not considered to be a significant financing component
in construction contracts with customers as the period
between the recognition of revenue under the cost-to-
cost method and the milestone payment is always less
than one year.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties for
late completion are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised.
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RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL’)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group

or the counterparty.

() FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the instrument is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the instrument is calculated using the

effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Debt instruments (continued)

0

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the instrument comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the instrument is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the instrument
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

FVTPL if the instrument does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of
the instrument (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(K)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(iii) Equity instruments
An equity instruments in any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(g) above.

Interest income is recognised as its accrues using the
effective interest method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave is
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a share option scheme and
issues equity-settled share-based payments to eligible
employees (including directors). Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.
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BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for
the year. Taxable profits differ from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profits nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amounts of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL
ASSETS

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECLs
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial

instrument at the date of initial recognition.

this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s

core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Significant increase in credit

(continued)
— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

risks

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Significant increase in credit

(continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

risks

Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report

4, BEREEBER(E)

(t)

TMEEMAWEERE
(%)

FERESMERE
WEE—BXSEHSHEE
fEHRRRERBELTHEE
ZEE  REMAENEBRE
ERE - @BAEEERENE
BRENT BHENTRRBE

- EBEOARRZEFHAE
R B 75 IR 2

- REBRAH MELHONEH
=

- XZHFHERALRA
R8T H#EE
RESXEHRRA - AR

SHFETERARER
EEEMER:

- XRSYUFARERESLET
Hi s EA: =X

- ZERMEEMEEMESH
1A B 75 IR 2 T OB 2K o

i £ BX R

BN BYEERKO AL
2B EERXZHFEEE  EA
WERF AEESHESHE
BE -HERZEZER(WER)
% EMESBREEDAIREAN
SE W PR F B R B 3T o
EARERIRERBEEPHRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—FZA=+—RHLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations which are dealt with below).

(@ Revenue recognition of construction contracts
relating to accounting for variation orders
During the course of business, the Group would make
claims for additional work performed, which may arise
either under specific circumstances provided for under
the contracts, or due to variations made to the contract
specifications by customers. Where the amounts of such
claims have not been formally agreed at the end of the
reporting period, the amount recoverable as estimated
by management is included in the contract assets in
determining the estimated recoverable amount.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(t), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward looking information.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)
(c) Revenue and profit recognition of

construction contracts

As disclosed in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recognition on a construction
contract is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contracts,
as well as the work done to date. The management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and provision for claims,
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations provided
by contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budgets accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
When the final cost incurred by the Group is different
from the amounts initially budgeted, such differences
will impact revenue and the profit or loss recognised
on the contracts. The provision for claims is determined
on the basis of the delay in the number of workdays
of the completion of the construction works which is
highly subjective and is subject to negotiation with the
customers. Management conducts periodic review of the
provision amount.

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
provision for claims which have an impact on the
percentage of completion of contracts and profit or loss
recognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s contract
assets and contract liabilities were amounted to
approximately HK$309,034,000 (2020: HK$207,707,000)
and HK$2,112,000 (2020: HK$5,272,000) respectively.
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d.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charges where useful lives are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2021 were approximately HK$42,158,000 (2020:
approximately HK$24,896,000) and HK$19,521,000
(2020: HK$32,373,000) respectively.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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d.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of property, plant and

(f)

equipment and

(continued)

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK$42,158,000 (2020: HK$24,896,000)
and HK$19,521,000 (2020: HK$32,373,000) respectively.

right-of-use assets

Impairment of trade receivables and

contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and
contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregated carrying amount of
trade receivables and contract assets was approximately
HK$390,658,000 (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$3,000,000) (2020: HK$248,805,000 (net of loss
allowance of approximately HK$1,948,000)).
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk,
as except for United States Dollar (“US$”) denominated
deposit and prepayment for a life insurance policy, most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in HK$, the functional currencies
of the Group’s entities. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policy will not be
performed as US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk
of movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$
to be insignificant.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables and contract assets) and
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
and deposit and prepayment for a life insurance is
limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Except for performance bonds for construction contracts,
the Group does not provide any financial guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. As at 31 March 2021, the 3
(2020: 2) largest trade debtors were approximately
HK$66,344,000 (2020: HK$30,184,000) or approximately
81% (2020: 73%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.
The Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit history.

Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 21 to 45 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different debtors, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. B EMEIE ()
(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) (b) EERRM(E)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESRNREBRAHNEE
(continued) (48)
The following table provides information about the TEREREBEAEER T =—
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade F=A=1T—HHRESEKHIE
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March 2021: FEHEEMAGEERRRE
HiEEEBZER:
2021
—E=-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
JEEAE IR E REAE EiERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiEx
Current (not past due)  EDHA (K@ H) 0.02% 42,987 8
1-30 days past due #1 H11-30H 0.02% 33,132 5
Over 60 days past due 1 HA 8 #8603 3.90% 5,742 224
81,861 237
Contract assets EHEE
Current (not past due) BV HA (& 181 87) 0.89% 311,797 2,763

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

BHBBEXLEARERBRELR
FHE o ZEFLRCERE UK
BR UK £= 3B 1 BRI ] A AR OB AR
W BRI AR B AN R 1B 4 R R
BEFFHHRLBER R ZEE
WEH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZT-—F=A=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bt 7% & B& & ¥B (4&)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) (b) 1; R (%)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESRWRERENEE
(continued) (48)
2020
—E-FF
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TE B B 1A REAE B R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current (not past due) BP HA (& i@ HA) 0.20% 13,020 26
1-30 days past due #1 Hi1-30H 0.08% 25177 19
31-60 days past due #1 #331-60H = 2,857 —
Over 60 days past due i1 2 R #R60 B = 89 —
41,143 45
Contract assets EHNEE
Current (not past due) BIHA (R #81 HF) 0.91% 209,610 1,903
Movements in the loss allowance account for trade FRN - BRABSEBFIBERELN
receivables and contract assets during the year are as BEVEBEREEZSHMT -
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-ERF
HK$j00_0 HK$ OOO
Ti#&xT T T
As at 1 April KU A—H 1,948 4,500
Impairment loss recognised for the year 4F X 32 &9 & (B &5 18 1,052 1,521
Amounts written off during the year FAMBE SR - (4,073)
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 3,000 1,948
The increase (2020: decrease) in loss allowance on trade HE—_Z—_—F=ZA=+—HL
receivables and contract asset during the year ended FE - -BZERRAEREN ﬁ
31 March 2021 was mainly due to the increase in gross EE’JJ&E TEI %ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ i) 1 Q==
carrying amount of trade receivables and contract assets ZFRD) TERREFHEK
(2020: net effect of increase in gross carrying amount of K IE& #)& = O BR T 48 BRI N
trade receivables and contract assets and amounts of (_7_ F:EBHRERFBERE
approximately HK$4,073,000 have been written off). HNEEMREAFEEINALLD
4,073,000 7 7T B € 5 4 i 85 7Y
/? -2 g)
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A MWK EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6.
(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or
non-response to collection activities, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. The Group
recognised the provision for ECL by assessing the credit
discount rate and the
likelihood of recovery, forward looking information and
considering the prevailing economic conditions.

risk characteristics of debtor,

All of the Group’s other receivables are considered to
have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised
during the reporting period was therefore limited to
12-month expected losses. The other receivables are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low risk
of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

b) =E=RERE)
HL 4t pE g 3508

B 2 Hfth FE UK

KU B 2 ATRETE

EBBREE -

REBREERR -

BiEs1E - EE M EE
Aﬂiﬁ B %71

B #5 2 bz & 38 (48)

BHCAASEEAZEKEE B
HMENE BRI EEEBERE
RIE - 2 LR B
BIEERBIF A - AEEEBFE
BEHEAZEERBRRH
A B 14 8 BHA
KERIRITEBRRERALRE

BT =

ARE B P A H A FEUC IR R
BN S
el i 2 O J5 18 1R R PR 1218 A 7R

NIBHYIE 4

TABRITHARE
,\:. BHREIME R R AR
CHBRRESEBREERR

Movement in the loss allowance for other receivables TN EMERGIENEEEE
during the year is as follows: 2EoT:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
At 1 April REA—H - -
Impairment losses recognised FARRZREBE
for the year 1,090 —
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 1,090 —

(© LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

(C) //ILED & &

$$lmﬁkﬁﬁmﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%&
BHNRBESHFR
HFRABRNEREREERD

PAERE
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6.

(@)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. B b EIE(F)
LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) Cc mBERERGE)
The following tables show the remaining contractual T%E‘J/—J—\$EIQ{E\E/\\ Sl
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the RERAUBRBFEERE(BEERSE
Group’s liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows AR EGt B (INRFEF )%
(including interest payments computed using contractual HMEHROBITARTHEDOF S
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of IR R 7N 5= [ AT RE 4% 22 SR AN R Y
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can SRR ENFIBREHTE -
be required to pay.
Specifically, for bank borrowings and lease liabilities HEms AR EsKREREER
which contain a repayment on demand clause which can ERMBBIEZHAIHERADE
be exercised at the lenders’ sole discretion, the analysis BIEITEMRITE fy’( HEB
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in & oM E BRI BE AT A
which the entity can be required to pay, that is if the =FH F’ﬁﬁlm’iﬁﬁmﬂj B4 2R
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call MRARITEE ZRANRE N
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for BIGHEETR - A THEAEREDND
the remaining lease liabilities is prepared based on the ISR RTECE XA R
scheduled repayment dates. &l o
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities AEECHABERSORNER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as EMEMINBABRI>ITWT :
follows:
Between  Between
On Within 1102 2t05
demand 1 year years years Total
BRER 1E R 1228 285 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx
As at 31 March 2021 R-—E-—-f=A=+-H
Financial liabilities subject to a ~ RRREEREERAN
repayment on demand clause SREE
Bank borrowings, secured RITER - HEM 97,154 = = = 97,154
Lease liabilities HEARE 7,188 - - - 7,188
Financial liabilities not subject to BAZRRBEEREERR
a repayment on demand clause Memas
Trade and retention payables EoRNFEREFRES - 360,441 11,584 - 372,025
Accruals and other payables FEF &R R E A ER TR 512 12,804 - - 13,316
Lease liabilities HEAE - 2,953 1,972 - 4,925
Other borrowing, unsecured HifEm  EEH = - 100,000 - 100,000
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(@)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bf#m e E IR (48)
LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) C mHELERERGE)
Between Between
On Within 1102 2105
demand 1 year years years Total
BEX 1R 1526 2E5EF Bt
HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
As at 31 March 2020 RZTZZF=A=+—H
Financial liabilities subject to a ZRABZEREEREH
repayment on demand clause SRERE
Bank borrowings, secured BITIER BEA 49,740 = = = 49,740
Lease liabilities HERE 6,491 - - - 6,491
Financial liabilities not subject to BAZHREEREERR
a repayment on demand clause HemaR
Trade and retention payables BIEMFEREMRES — 145,091 13,634 - 158,725
Accruals and other payables BB R EMERTE 3,673 5,843 = - 9,516
Lease liabllities HEEE - 3,344 489 - 3,833
Other borrowing, unsecured HifEs  mER = — 100,000 — 100,000

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings and lease liabilities with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts are greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the lenders will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings and lease
liabilities will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates.

R A B A 17 TE TR B B X
AHFE R BREERKORT
ERRHEEREFEHOIEER
o - BERARAERBEAAON
RFENNEMK - Btk - B
RERREXAEMNZIHRERD
g 2K REEE TR E
BOFRIR o KR TR AN SR B /9 B 75 51K
R BEER/ERATKATEE
TEERBESLKANGER - &
ZHE BEARTERLEER
BEREREEEEBYEN -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
() LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

6. B E R EE(R)

(c)

//|L@J§i (,./\)

Within Between Between Over
1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years 5 years Total
1R 1226 2Z5%F 5FRE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2021 R=-ZB=—§
=A=+-—H
Bank borrowings RITIE K 92,078 469 1,363 4,464 98,374
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,233 2,528 2,153 - 7,914
As at 31 March 2020 NZZE_THF
=A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RAITE K 43,905 443 1,291 4,859 50,498
Lease liabilities HEEE 6,241 399 — - 6,640
(d) INTEREST RATE RISK (d) FIEE

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, deposit for a life insurance
product, trust receipt loans, bank loans, factoring loans,
bank overdrafts and the remaining balance of lease
liabilities and therefore bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, if interest rates at that
date had been 50 basis points lower or higher with
all other variables held constant, there would be no
significant change to the profit after tax for the year.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report

AEEERRERITER  AS
RRERZRS - EREEEN
RITER - REER  RITEX
FHEEAENBRTERNIRER
B RER - BRI
BZBMEEE -

R-B-—FR-F_TE=]
=t—R BRAEEHTEE
ERHTR  MREFIRTES
FFBOMERE - REEEB B
WMRETEREEASD -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. Bt 7% & B& & ¥B (4&)

() CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e RImEPRNEmITE
AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD %8 Al
2021 2020
—E—F TE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Financial assets: ERBEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost R AR 2
SRVEE 298,587 146,820
Financial liabilities: eRasE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1% B $5 AX 2K 71 Bf 2
SREaE 575,389 310,875
()  FAIR VALUES fH 2D¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets rEEeREERSHAGBNE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated B IFARR R R R BRE (B A
statement of financial position approximate their ZEER-_ZE_—FR-_ZT_ZTF
respective fair values as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. —A=+—H®WAFEERE °
7. REVENUE 7. W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AEBERRZHSTOT :
2021 2020
—EBC—F —E_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBxT FAT
Recognised over time within the ERMEHREENFE15R
scope of HKFRS 15 SEEANMRE —SHERER
Provision of foundation services 12 4t ih B AR 75 933,797 373,757
Revenue from other sources kB H AR IR 2 Uk 25
Leasing of machinery A E = 1,146

933,797 374,903
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7. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 7. Wz (48)
As at 31 March 2021, the aggregated amount of revenue RZEZ—F=H=+—8" \BiR
expected to be recognised in the future related to performance H%E}UJE R B B A ¥R 5 B HA SR 52 K (3D
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at DARTEK)BHETEBH L Hﬂlﬁ?&‘i\gﬁ
the reporting date is approximately HK$784,525,000 (2020: %) 5&784,525,0008 L (ZEZFF 1 4
approximately HK$309,575,000). The Group will recognise the 309,575,000/ JT) ° A & B 7 5 2R 7T
expected revenue in future when or as the work is completed P = H—*H'JE 7 ?ﬁ BRI EACER A N
which is expected to occur over the next 12 months (2020: 12 128 (ZZ2=ZF : 128248 B) A
to 24 months). ) o
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hihut A
2021 2020
—E-—F T F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T AT
Government grant income (note) B 78 Bh W A (B 5E) 5,819 =
Imputed interest income HE M B WA 5,962 2,981
Interest income F2 M A 780 95
Sundry income MIEUA 138 469
12,699 3,545
Note: The amount represents the receipts from Employment Support Mizk: SRIBEWEEEBBTAREMR
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government under which the BMEIFTEINFIE - EE TR
conditions of the government grant were fulfilled during the year WIRHEERFRNER(ZT_ZF:
(2020: Nil). ') o
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. HEER
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BEBEDHEER

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, being the
directors of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE—_ZT-_—F=-A=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9.
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The directors consider that the Group manages its businesses
by divisions, which are organised into business units based
on their services provided, and has the reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i) Foundation — provision of foundation services

(i)  Leasing — leasing of machinery

The reportable segments are identified in a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the

Group’s senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

2EEH(E)

BEDHRER(E)

FERA - ARERDREREEE -
I R EAR G0 RIS 4B AR TS B - 2
FEREBHMMT :

() HE — BHBERS
() HE — #WEE
BTERDBEZE»HEARSEERR

TTHREEABRMHADRSE R A
EERDERFERRAE)2T7E—
o

Foundation Leasing Total
it & HE At
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--f -T-ZTF ZB--F -T-TF ZBZ-F -ZT-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT THT THT TET FHT
Reportable segment revenue BTERD B 933,797 373,757 = 1,146 933,797 374,903
Reportable segment results BIEBRHEEE 26,921 27,036 (1,415) (1,999) 25,506 25,037
Central administrative expenses and FRITBAT R
directors’ emoluments R (24,435) (24,028)
Profit before tax B % A 7 1,071 1,009
Reportable segment results include: ATE2RABEEOR
Interest income FEBKA 47 93 = = 47 93
Finance costs BEKRAK 1,887 1,808 26 400 1,913 2,208
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B R RGN E 3,982 4,038 542 584 4,524 4,622
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CRESENE 3,239 4,634 722 1,238 3,961 5,872
Additions to property, plant and equipment REME BBERERE 1,307 2,371 = = 1,307 2,371
Additions to right-of-use assets REGREEE 13,188 1,111 - - 13,188 1,11
Provision for ECL on trade receivables and HEFERUFBERANEE
contract assets NESEEBBGRES 1,052 1,521 - = 1,052 1,521

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

Segment results represent profit/(loss) attributable to the
segment without allocation of corporate income, central
administrative expenses and directors’ emoluments.

2 9 2 BTG 5 MR 2 A )
BEP -

DREBRADEEERA  PRTT

B FEEMER D BEERN
(B8) -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2EEH(E)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES PHEEEKEBE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTEHINAREBRIREEDFRE D2 E
by operating segments: ENBERNDT:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAETT
SEGMENT ASSETS THEE
Foundation B 614,430 328,396
Leasing HE 6,154 17,603
Total segment assets DEEEAG 620,584 345,999
Unallocated assets RAHBEE 62,308 72,792
Consolidated assets SeEEE 682,892 418,791
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SHEEaE
Foundation i B 491,270 222,650
Leasing HE 3,088 4,514
Total segment liabilities SEAEES 494,358 227,164
Unallocated liabilities Ao BEEEE 95,047 99,211
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 589,405 326,375

(0

)

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
the unallocated assets; and

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources to segment:

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than those unallocated liabilities which are centrally

managed by the Group’s management.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s operations are not subject to significant seasonal
factors.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

All non-current assets as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 and
the Group’s revenue from external customers during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are located in and generated
from Hong Kong.

REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Group’s customer base for whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 is set out as below:

2EEH(E)

= &
R —FR_ZT_TF=ZA=+—
BB RBEEARBE_S=
—ERZZ_TF=ZA=+—HILFE
REERBINDEF B U = 3567 0 R
=

2P
&E T FR-E-_TFZA=+
—BIEFE  BEARZHAEE10% A
LW ENEPEMEF O

2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Foundation services 1 & Bk 7%
Customer 1 B 145,081 134,579
Customer 2 (note (i) B2 () N/A Fi#E R 46,144
Customer 3 (note (i) = 3 (Bt 5 () N/A Fi#E R 45,728
Customer 4 (note (ii)) & P4 (B £ (i) 190,121 N/A 38 F
Customer 5 (note (ii)) &= 5 (B 5% (i) 237,984 N/A 38 F
Customer 6 (note (ii)) = 6 (Bt 5% (i) 205,157 N/A 38 F
Notes: B 5
(i) These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue 0) RERFPUYEBEMAEEHE

of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

(if) These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

— = A=+ — AR B 10%
BAE -

(ii) ZEREFPUEARAEEEE_S=

TFE=A=1+—HALEFENLKZE10%
LAE
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10. FINANCE COSTS

10. M & KA

11.

2021 2020
—EBC-—F TE-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FATT
Interest on bank borrowings |7 E KT B 1,622 1,501
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 339 721

Imputed interest expenses on other Hib g R E A SR
borrowings 5,962 5,869
7,923 8,091

Less: Amounts attributable to contract & AL T2 fE(L & 58

works (410) (861)
7,513 7,230

The weight average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed
generally is at a rate of 3.31% per annum (2020: 5.28%).

INCOME TAX

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity established in Hong
Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that amount will
be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits of the group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax rate regime
will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off
against the assessable profit for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 11. FT8 % (#)
The reconciliation between the income tax and the product of BT 15 %4 B2 B 5 B g A1) SR AR B R 15 L
profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate MEMSBERBEOEEREOT
is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FAET
Profit before tax B 75 A1 g ) 1,071 1,009
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax #216.5% (ZE = F :
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 16.5%) B 2 & A 15
MEFTENIE 177 166
Tax effect of income that is not taxable 78 =R 5 U A BY 75 75 52 & (1,996) (502)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AR AR E
deductible 3,053 2,116
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses E SRR FE R IE B 18
not previously recognised W ETE (1,827) (1,514)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERE R ZBHOBH
not recognised v 351 (394)
Tax effect of previous tax losses S RTFER B IA B B
recognised v (48) (129)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k & 3R Bt T8 J&5 18 ) F4 75
= a8 290 257
Income tax Fr {5 % - —
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A X4
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. £AHF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ REBNFRBZFNENR,GIA)T
(crediting) the following: CIE-S-E
2021 2020
—E-—F S
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FExT FAT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% R % B
— Current — BEA 750 650
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFEBEREE (107) (32)
Cost of construction materials EEM B A @) 191,624 52,051
Depreciation on property, Y WERREBITE
plant and equipment () 4,579 4,622
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (g BE#EEETE (b) 5,478 6,745
Gain on disposals of property, HEYSE KR
plant and equipment, net R F 5 - (324)
(Gain)/loss termination of leases IR E (ks EE (2) 3
Written off of contract assets MEENEE (c) 4,693 4,567
Provision for ECL on trade MEBSEIWZIE - 54
receivables, contract assets and BE R H il FhiE
other receivables HTEHA = B BB =TiR
B 2,142 1,521
Lease payments not included in the Y EtATRE BB E
measurement of lease liabilities EoRiER=E NN (d) 17,914 9,401

Notes: B

(@  The amounts included in cost of services rendered. (@) Ze BB AR H®RBK A -

(o)  The amounts included in cost of services rendered for the years (o) ZeHEHABZE_ZE_—FR=F
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately —EF=ZA=t+—HLEFEMRREHE
HK$6,781,000 and HK$7,966,000 respectively. AR 7 Bk 2N - 9 Rl 96,781,000 7T &

7,966,000 7T °

(©) The amounts included in administrative and other operating () ZEHEEAATHRREMEERAE -
expenses.

(d)  The amounts included in cost of services rendered for the years @ ZEBEEFABE_S_—FR_ZFT

—EFEZA=t+—BLEEENRREHE
RIS A 5 Bl A #915,714,0007%8 7T &
6,224,000/ 7T °

ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$15,714,000 and HK$6,224,000 respectively.

128 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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A MWK EE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_T-_—F=-A=1+—RALFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

13. EERAMZ

2021 2020
—E=-— —EEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FET TATT
Employee benefits expense EERAMAXZ
(including directors’ emoluments): (BEEEMS) -

Salaries, bonuses and allowances A A AN S=4: 68,747 51,053

Retirement benefits scheme RIRE T T8I
contributions (a) 2,188 1,683
(o) 70,935 52,736

Notes:
(@) Retirement benefits scheme contributions:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5%
(2020: 5%) of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum
amount of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(b) The amounts included in cost of services rendered for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$52,486,000 and approximately HK$37,815,000 respectively.

() Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year did
not include (2020: Nil) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements below. The emoluments of the remaining 5 (2020: 5)
individuals are set out below:

o &

R ORAR M B R

AEBERBE SRS EARESTEIE
BIStEFTBEE R A B IEBMA MR
Berral((aEesEl)) #X - A%E
MAEBEeTEELENEIIREES
BRI&EME% (ZE_FF:5%):tHE -
EEZEBENE A &= HFKEA1,500
B (ZE T F 1,500/ 7T) * MmlA58R
BeirEIftag  EXNEHERE
FiA o

ZEBOHABE_E-_—ER_FT—
TEZA=+—ALFENRMREHR
R DR A #152,486,0007%8 7T & 47
37,815,000/ 7T °

A& FHMAL:

FAREENANZEHHMALHIL
E(CT_TF B)REES HME
BERBRE T X &6 M5 RRME140
DA - RTBR(ZTZTF :58)A
THBMEEINIT

2021 2020

—E-—F TEC-EE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FiEx FHET

Basic salaries and allowances EARFH & RER 7,294 7,100
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR ¥k 18 & 5 & fit 7% 52 37
7,346 7137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED)  13.

Notes: (continued)

(c) (continued)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals who are not the
director fell within the following bands:

EEE®FIFAXZ(E)

MizE: ()
© (%)

WA EN RS H A LB
SERTHIEBE:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E_TF

Number of person Number of person

Band of emoluments (HK$) B & E (&) AH AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/% 7T 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000 7T 2 2

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14,

(@ DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS:

The emoluments of every Director are set out below:

EEEMIRES

(@) EFME:
EEEENMERIIMT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAEAFRAGENBELIXRBHNESCHABA2HE

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions Total
RIKET
#He e FRRLL HE L #gt
HK$’'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TET TET TEx TERx
Executive Directors: BiTES:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) BRELE(FE) - - - - -
Mr. Guan Jingdong BRRiE 300 - - = 300
Independent Non-executive Directors:  BUFHTES:
Dr. Luo Tiejian B REL 150 = = - 150
Professor Lu Haitian V8 K 2 5% 150 = = - 150
Mr. Liu Xin 2T k4 150 - = = 150
Total for the year ended BZ-8--%=A=+-H
31 March 2021 LA 750 = = - 750
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REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_T-_—F=-A=1+—RALFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEF R EZS (18)
(CONTINUED)

(@) DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED) (@) BEEMS: (B

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAEEARAREANBRRAEBNEEZEAAEN 2B &

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions Total
RINEF
e o RRTL SrEl R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THT TR
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) RBELEEE) - - - - -
Mr. Guan Jingdong BERLE 300 = = - 300
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFYTES:
Dr. Luo Tijian BEREL 150 = = - 150
Professor Lu Haitian BEE R 150 = = - 150
Mr. Liu Xin BTk 4 150 - - - 150
Total for the year ended BE-S-%f=HA=+-H
31 March 2020 LEEEA 750 = = = 750
No share options or any other forms of share-based FR - WENESRLBRES
payments were granted to the directors during the year FAEMFEARONRZE
(2020: Nil). —TFEE)
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, BHE_Z-_—FR-_Z-_FTF=
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the A=1+—HLEFE ASEWE
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement A 1 fo] 2 22 3 B = 3 A £ 324
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for ER S IERWSIHFMARE
loss of office. E s I A R K B 2 S Bk e

REERME -
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14. BENEFITS AND

15.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(@)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year
(2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement
and contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’'s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil).

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. ERZF
(@) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE @ BRELRRZF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the following:

BREXRBMITIIZAT T A G
/g.

It

2021 2020
—E-—F TEFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T F#& T
Profit for the purpose of calculating FEESRERREF] 2
basic earnings per share kil 1,071 1,009
2021 2020
—EB-—F T -TF
’000 ’000
T Bz T’
Number of shares gvR S q=|
Weighted average number of TEERERAN 2
ordinary shares for the purpose - 38 AR b0 S5 B8R
of calculating basic earnings per
share 400,000 400,000
(b) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (o) =FREFRF

No diluted earnings per share to be presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

HRARBBE_T_—F R
Z_ZF=A=T—HLEFEY
BEEMEEESERR  HALE
2 EREFERF -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. W% - Rk efE

Furniture and Plant and Motor
equipment machinery vehicle Total
REARRE HBREH RE @z
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Cost BA
As at 1 April 2019 R-Z—AEMA—R 2,349 50,718 1025 54,002
Additions wNE 76 2,295 — 2,371
Disposals HE = (3,242) = (3,242)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-Z-THF=A=+—HEK
—E-_TFMA—H 2,425 49,771 1,025 53,221
Transfer from right-of-use assets EROFRAREE - 30,614 1,139 31,753
Additions NE 625 497 185 1,307
As at 31 March 2021 W_ZE-_—F=ZHF=+—H 3,050 80,882 2,349 86,281
Accumulated depreciation AGtine
As at 1 April 2019 RZZT—NFMA—H 1,401 22,069 557 24,027
Charge for the year FRZ 402 4,017 203 4,622
Disposals HE = (324) = (324)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZTHF=-A=+—HE
—E-ZTFWA—H 1,803 25,762 760 28,325
Transfer from right-of-use assets BRERACRAEEE - 10,080 1,139 11,219
Charge for the year FRLTH 380 4,016 183 4,579
As at 31 March 2021 R_FE-_—F=HF=+—H 2,183 39,858 2,082 44,123
Carrying amount IREE
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H 867 41,024 267 42,158
As at 31 March 2020 R_ZE-_ZF=ZA=+—H 622 24,009 265 24,896
As at 31 March 2021, the aggregated carrying amount of R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H HFE#A

property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$8,840,000
(2020: HK$5,482,000) were pledged to secure bank borrowings
(note 28) and lease liabilities (note 27).

The Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant property,
plant and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation
are transferred from right-of-use assets upon exercising
purchase options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—FZA=+—RHLEE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had US$ denominated
deposit and prepayment for a life insurance policy amounted
to approximately HK$9,274,000 (2020: HK$9,003,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered into
a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure a
director of a Group’s subsidiary, under which a subsidiary of the
Group is the beneficiary and policy holder. At the inception, the
Group is required to pay an upfront payment for the policy. the
Group may request a partial surrender or full surrender of the
policy at any time and receive cash refund based on the value of
the policy at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
gross premium paid at inception plus accumulated guaranteed
interest earned and minus policy expense and insurance premium
charged. If such withdrawal is made at any time during the first
to the eighteen policy year, as appropriate, a pre-determined
specified surrender charge would be imposed. The policy
premium expense and insurance charges are recognised in profit
or loss over the expected life of the life insurance policy and the
deposit placed is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The deposit placed for the life insurance policy
carries guaranteed interests at interest rates ranging from 2% to
4.25% plus a premium determined by the insurance company
during the tenures of the policy.

The gross premium paid at inception of the life insurance policy
consists of a deposit placed element and a prepayment for life
insurance element. These two elements are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position at the aggregate of
the amount of gross premium paid plus interest earned, and
after deducting the annual cost of insurance and other applicable
charges.

The directors consider that the Group will not terminate the
policy nor withdraw cash prior to the end of the surrender period
of the policy entered during the year ended 31 March 2020,
accordingly, the amount is presented as non-current assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

R-BE-_—F=A=+—0 A£EH
NETHENASRBRRENZEE X
8 < 3k 18 499,274,000 T(—E - F
£F : 9,003,000/ 7T) °

(B R _TF=A=+—RHILFE
AEBH-RRBRAFFZASRE
RE - LAREBMBARESIRIR -
Bt AEEHRBARAX T A RR
BB A NG AEBAERRE
STABEMR - AEE AR ERKLH
BRSEBRR - RBRBEREEBBR
EEAENNREER  REBENIE
BB BREINE BRI ZFTIRE
FERATBBIRER ST RIREFTH -
fii 8 A RUEE TV R B BB 18 F N A
FREREED (2n@E ) - B #S = i N 78 5
ETHHETRRE - REMAI KRR
EAREBREASRBRENTERF
RIER  MITEMZE SR K AR
BEBRFEEINE - EASRRRE
GFEMZRSEN 2% E4.25%H) (R &
FEBSMRBRABDNIREFHANET
R ERT S °

RASRBRERBINNARER
EEEREBIRASRRIANFR
WMo o ZMEMIPZENBRESE
EREN SRR (BHNKRRREE
PR B E A E R RAR S B AR
RATER

EER/AKREBITERNBE_T=
TEZA=+t—BHLEFEARTILHK
BRRAR A RATR L RERZIR
T AUHBESEIRES TR
KAIERRBEE °
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18. DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENT FOR A LIFE
INSURANCE POLICY (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the policy are as follows:

18. A\ASRBERENEER
R REE)
REFEDT :

Guaranteed interest rates

R8I 2R

Second year

Insured sum Upfront payment First year and onwards
KRR 8 43 ZE:3 RERNE
US$3,000,000 Approximately US$1,153,000
(equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,400,000) HK$9,0083,000) 4.25% 2%
3,000,000 7T #91,153,0003 T
(8% 7 £923,400,0007% ) (#8 & 7 499,003,000/ 7T.)
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the deposit and prepayment RZE_—FR_F_TF=A=+—

for a life insurance policy was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (note 28).

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

$08) o

B - ASRBRENKRSES MAMNKEA
EERIEAR KB RITE S M (K

19. FRHESLSE

Leased plant and

machinery and Leased
motor vehicle properties Total
FHEESER
B RSE HEWE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFMHA—H 33,329 3,103 36,432
Additions NE = 2,811 2,811
Termination of leases wIFHE = (125) (125)
Depreciation e (8,982) (2,763) (6,745)
As at 31 March 2020 and R-_ZE_ZTF=A=+—H
1 April 2020 ;FZZEZFFWA—A 29,347 3,026 32,373
Additions NE 8,510 4,678 13,188
Termination of leases WIFHE = (28) (28)
Transfer to property, plant EREYZE HRREE
and equipment (20,534) — (20,534)
Depreciation e (2,785) (2,693) (5,478)
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=F=+—H 14,538 4,983 19,521

The Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant right-
of-use assets and the related accumulated depreciation are
transferred to property, plant and equipment upon exercising

purchase options.
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REUBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19.

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$11,904,000 (2020:
HK$10,228,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets

ERHEEEE)

R—E-_—F=ZA=+—H &8
& #911,904,000% T(Z T = & F:

of approximately HK$19,521,000 (2020: HK$32,373,000) as at

10,228,000/ Jt) H1 A B (& A #E &

31 March 2021. The lease agreements of leased assets do E #919,5621,000% T(Z & = T
not impose any covenants other than the security interests 32,373,000/ ) — i ER - HEEE
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased HEBZ T EMEMRERE - EEEA

properties may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
Included in leased plant and machinery and motor vehicle
of approximately HK$14,538,000 (2020: HK$29,347,000) was
pledged as security for the Group’s lease liabilities (note 28).

PEHEEE 2 HFEAERN - ME
MESGERERBEBEERSR - B
B 28 N M A B )7 B 4914,638,000
BT (ZE T 29,347,000 AT)E
tERAEEHRERENER (H5E28) -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx T T
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FRAREEMNTERAX
assets 5,478 6,745
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGRE
(included in finance costs) (BT ABLE Bk &) 339 721
Expenses relating to short-term lease B E AR X
(included in cost of services rendered) (BT A BT 42 1t AR 75 Bk %) 15,714 6,224
Expenses relating to short-term lease B SRR
(included in administrative and other GTATTH R HE M
operating expenses) FsZ) 2,200 3,177

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 36(c).

EEEEMReREBENFBIR
B 5E36(c) °

For both years, the Group leases various offices, plants and AEEREFERNAEEEHRES T
machineries and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease #)J# NE HEREBARTE - HE
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 5 years ’] TJ HEEFHIERSFF (=
(2020: 1 year to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an T F AFE5F) o HEF Ty IR E B

individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

EERER - M B2 R & R S {5
H-RETHEBAFHETARERE
B AEEERANNERELETE
BHATRBIMITEEIR -
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, there was no such

triggering event.

19.

EHEEEGHE)

AN - R B A AT AEHISBE RN E
AEMHRBREIREXNEGHE - A&
EEHT AR EE BT FEE
BEEE BET - —FRZZT-FTF
“A=T—RALFE HBEFHEE
EF o

20. INVENTORIES 20. =8
2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FAT
Construction materials EEM K 6,024 4,167

21,

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are

RBEEHR AEENFEUKA

stated at cost. HIER o
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZ B FKIE
2021 2020
—E—F T -FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
Trade receivables =00 1 & 81,861 41,143
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B TEHEEEEEBET
under ECL R ERB (237) (45)
81,624 41,098
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HE_Z-_—F=ZR=1T—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

21.

BEZEWREE

Notes: B 2 -

(@  The Group’s trade receivables represent progress billings (@) AEENEZRBABIEENELHE
receivables from contract customers. The general credit terms of WHEER BIFERKRENEHRHA
trade receivables were within 30 to 45 days (2020: 14 to 45 days). HAS0E45H (Z T =T F : 14F45H)
Application for progress payment of contract works is made on a Ao BRI TREENRIIEHRRE o K
regular basis. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its EEHERKERIEEFREET -
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly ESTHBRI S
by directors.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the RTAREENESERKIBALEE
invoice date of progress billing, and net of allowance is as follows: REBEERA A EEW MR BENR
e DT
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T T
HK$000 HK$'000
TFiExT FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 76,106 38,152
31 to 60 days 31£60H - 2,857
Over 60 days 60H LA £ 5,518 89
81,624 41,098
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEEZEWFENEREEEDIES
denominated in HK$. JLEHE ©
(b) As part of its normal business, the Group entered into certain (b) EEBEEBN 39 AEBEIZ

factoring arrangements and transferred certain trade and retention
receivables under contract assets to the banks. If these receivables
are not paid at maturity, the banks have the right to request
the Group to pay the unsettled balances. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the receivables. Cash received from the banks are recognised as
factoring loans and are disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregated carrying amount of trade
receivables and retention receivables under contract assets or
liabilities that have been transferred under factoring arrangements
but have not been derecognised amounted to approximately
HK$62,605,000 (2020: HK$44,289,000). The carrying amount of
the factoring loans financed as at 31 March 2021 is approximately
HK$74,847,000 (2020: HK$34,978,000).

ETRERH SRMNBEERTET
B 5 e UK T B e R [E] 2 88 AR TR
17 ° W2 % R M R IR L R B #3249
ARITRAEREZRAEESNAEE
Eeh e ARNAEEY BEREZER
WHRIBEBNERRER KR - H4
BERALSEEFEANZHEEE -
BRTKRNESEAS/REER R
WBEREGRE PSRRI 28 ©

RZZE-—F=A=+—0 " 1BERE
ZHEHERENAKEBERANEE
HEEETHESERKE & ERR
& & # R [ 48 {8 A #962,605,000 7 T
(ZZ T4 : 44,289,000/ TT) - A=
T-_—F=-fA=1+—H BEEHREE
TR BR T 1B /5 £974,847,00058 7T (= F
— =4 : 34,978,000 B IT) °
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22. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22. BB E (AfFE)
2021 2020
Contract assets EHEE —E=—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FATT
Arising from performance under REBITEESH
construction contracts 309,034 207,707
Receivables from contract with B SIS 2R 155
customers within the scope of HEANEF GO
HKFRS 15, which are included in FEW FRIE - FTA
“Trade receivables” (85 0E | 81,535 41,009

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from
customers under construction contracts that arise when the
Group receives an unconditional payments from customers in
line with a series of performance related milestones.

The increase in contract assets in 2020 and 2021 was result
of the increase in the provision of construction services at the
end of each of the years.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous period is approximately HK$4,894,000 (2020:
HK$6,952,000), mainly due to the changes in estimate of the
stage of completion of certain construction contracts.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
after more than one year is approximately HK$47,131,000
(2020: HK$10,117,000).

BHAHEENSER/REEANET
FBREFPM&ER RAKRERETPIK

AEGHENRBES  B—RIED
R B2 — 5 -
R-B_ZER_F_—FNEER

TSR & G AR IE 4 12 5L IRAG 48 DO Y
B o

FRA - ﬁmﬁﬁﬂsﬁfﬂeﬁf
B 17) B # & X P % R Y
@/%489400&%;m(__7
6,952,000/ 7)) ° %E££m<*
HEELMIBET T B R B A EE)

R EBEAE—FRKRREMNEAENEES
B8 4] B47131,0008 T(Z T - F 4
10,117,000 7T) °

Hﬁi
1 B ol
K o
RS

°++I—H?
e

2021 2020
Contract liabilities EHEE —E—F TR -TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAETT
Bilings in advance of performance BHETEBEW KA
obligation
— Construction contracts — BEAEY 2,112 5,272

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are
balances due to customers under construction contracts.
These arise if a particular milestone payment exceeds the
revenue recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method.
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3 =\ [ 4=
22. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED) 22. @B E (A&K)(&E
The decrease (2020: increase) in contract liabilities in 2021 RZBZ—FEHNBERD (ZZTZZ
was mainly due to the decrease (2020: increase) in advances FRIMNFTERNRMERREHIRH
received from customers in relation to the provision of BEREHERETEZERD (ZZE=
construction services at the end of the reporting period. TE AT -
Movements in contract liabilities: aHaEES:
2021 2020
e —E-T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx FAT
Balance as at 1 April RO A—HZ & &% 5,272 531
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result FRERR S EBL
of recognising revenue during the year EHBERLF AT
was included in the contract liabilities AHEE
at the beginning of the period (5,272) (531)
Increase in contract liabilities as H &L FE W R I E R
a result of billing in advance G B E N
of construction activities 2,112 5,272
Balance as at 31 March R=ZRA=+—B2z&& 2,112 5,272

None of billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year

(2020: Nil).

BHTENBE - FRERSKAD
BHOBKFB(ZE_ZF: £)-

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. A FRIE-ImE R EM
RECEIVABLES i ]
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHTT
Prepayments A B 7,568 2,828
Deposits (note a) & (ff7Ea) 53,153 3,548
Other receivables (note b) H b & W38 (M 5Eb) 111,783 5,801
172,504 12177
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

24,

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of deposits included
a refundable trade deposit to a supplier of approximately
HK$50,090,000 (2020: Nil) (net of allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$1,090,000 (2020: Nil) for purchase of raw
materials to support the Group’s daily operation. The purchase
order was subsequently cancelled and the refundable deposit
of HK$51,180,000, together with compensation arising from
cancellation of the purchase order, has been subsequently repaid
to the Group in June 2021.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of other receivables
included collateral deposits of approximately HK$82,171,000 (2020:
HK$2,936,000) for issuance of performance bond amounts totaling
of approximately HK$183,894,000 (2020: HK$69,459,000). Details
are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

23.

24,

ANMRE - EE R Hit
e W K TE (48
B R

@) R-ZE-—H=A=+—08 " &&£E@E
EEERBERMHUAIEAEERE
EEMHEERELENTREZESI RS
#950,090,000/8 T (ZZ =T F : &)1
% 78 215 B 5 18 B #8 491,090,0007% 7T
(ZZ2=TF &) - BT EHBEER
H - R AR i ¥ £ 51,180,000/ I E [F)
BB EELENBEDRERE
T EXAEETEAERE -

(b) R=ZZFE-_—F=A=+—H" &t
FRFENEAEREEAR S
#82,171,000% (= T = T F:
2,936,000/ 7T) * UNELBHRFSE
4 ££#49183,894,000/8 T (Z T =_Z 4 :
69,459,000 7T) ° B B4R & B
IR M 5£E37 ©

EERRITER RT
JSE

AEEOBERFRITHERIFEEMN TR
TR MMESAREBEERRITHR
BB (BN R A M RAME28) ©

2021 2020

—E-—-F —ECoTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Pledged bank deposits SR ITIE R 36,353 16,308
Bank and cash balances RITRIR® &7 6,400 71,062
42,753 87,370

Pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

EEARTERALRITRIRE HE R
BIATBEFE:

2021 2020
—E=—F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

us$ ETT = 1,783
HK$ BT 42,750 85,527
Renminbi AR 3 60
42,753 87,370
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25. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

25 ESENREREMSRK

& &

2021 2020
—EBC-—F —E-FE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & THExT FAT
Trade payables 5N R (@) 334,205 128,298
Retention payables ERRES (o) 37,820 30,427
372,025 168,725
Notes: B 2 -
(@  The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the (@) AT ARAREE®E S FE R 5 I8 LA UER
date of receipt of goods/services, is as follows: Y, IR B A B EIRE ST
2021 2020
—E=-—F T -BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z230H 107,488 44,448
31 to 60 days 31£60H 53,103 19,842
61 to 90 days 61290H 46,418 16,862
Over 90 days 90H KA E 127,196 47,146
334,205 128,298
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEEBZEMNZIENREEDIRS
denominated in HK$. JUETE ©
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s trade payables of approximately R-TE-_—F=A=1+—H8 AEEH
HK$42,598,000 (2020: Nil) are guaranteed by a director of a Group’s & 5 &+ 3UIE #942,598,0008 T (= F
subsidiary. —TF EBEAEENBAR —RE
BER-
()  As at 31 March 2021, the amount of the Group’s retention payables b)) R=ZTE——F=A=+—8"  BAHER

expected to be due after more than twelve months was approximately
HK$11,584,000 (2020: HK$13,634,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention payables are
denominated in HK$.

BT—EA AR AEEEMNRE
% 4 %8 5#11,584,0008 T(—E-F
£ 13,634,000 70) °

A B AR E © ) B E 8 55 7T
5HE -
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26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. Bt E R R H {th B 4
=h
|
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T F#& T
Accruals EETE R 12,804 5,843
Other payables b JE T R 512 3,673
13,316 9,516
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other AEEMETE R R HEAM ENFKIEL
payables are denominated in HK$. BREEDIEBITEE -
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s other payables of RZE——F=A=+—0 ' A5£EH
approximately HK$512,000 (2020: HK$3,673,000) represent ’r@ﬂ’gﬁ I L512,0008 (2= F
amount due to a director of a Group’s subsidiary. The amount £ : 3,673,000/ 7r) 15 FE 1+ 7~ & B T /28
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. RNRAEEHIE - ZENFRIBAEIER
BB RIREREE -
= =
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 271. HEBE

In the consolidated statement of financial position, lease
liabilities due for repayment after one year which contain
repayment on demand clause were classified as current
liabilities. The maturity of lease liabilities is as follows:

RIFETBRRE  HEREKEE
EREBEER—FRIBEENTHESR
BEofEARDAGR HEABEMNIEH
EDESE

—

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BEHESR BEHEENRNERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—8=-% -—T-TH ZBZ-§ -—T-TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAET T FTET
Within one year —FR 6,185 9,585 5,611 9,352
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZRF (BEEEMTF) 6,653 888 6,293 876
12,838 10,473 11,904 10,228
Less: Future finance charges W:RRBREER (934) (245) NATER  NATEA
Present value of lease obligations HEEENRAE 11,904 10,228 11,904 10,228
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B ZER2{E AR B HE R 5k
months or contains repayment on demand HAEREREBEEROR
clause (shown under current liabilities) HRRBEERTIR) (9,976) (9,745)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ ZBRM2{8 A 14 B EHE [ H9 8 1,928 483
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It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant
and equipment and motor vehicle under finance leases. The
average lease term is 4 years (2020: 4 years). As at 31 March
2021, the average effective borrowing rate was approximately
4.45% (2020: approximately 3.71%). As at 31 March 2021,
lease liabilities of approximately HK$11,602,000 (2020:
HK$8,368,000) bear fixed interest rate at the inception of the
lease and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The remaining balance are arranged at floating rates and
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. All leases are
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments. At the end of each
lease term, the Group has the option to purchase the leased
plant and machinery at a nominal price.

Except for lease liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$4,716,000 (2020: HK$3,737,000), the remaining lease
liabilities contain clause which give the lenders the right at
their sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

In addition, most of the Group’s lease liabilities are secured
by (i) the Group’s right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment in aggregate of approximately HK$21,591,000 (2020:
HK$34,830,000) and (ii) corporate guarantee executed by the
Company.

NRtERERAE TYE  #HErXR
BUARAEANEENEE - FHH
HAEAF(ZE_ZTF 4F)  c R=T =
—F=ZA=+—8 " ' FHEEERF
R AA45% (ZFE = FF : §93.71%) °
R-E-_—F=HA=+—H HE&E
& #J11,602,0008 T(Z & = T F:
8,368,000/ Jr) & M & 7T 3/ i B9 [E &
FEFE AmMSAEBEEAFE
TR - ST ERIZZEHEEE -
SAEEBBRBESRENERR © AT
EHERETEEEER - il &5k
RS MR L EMZHE - R
HERE AEERREBUEEERE
B 70 S 8 R A -

BREEBEN4716,0008 T (ZE-F
% : 8,737,000 )5 B THEAE
BB 48 T HGR AR R T ] B ] 25k AT
BrEMz 2RISR A& T H#H
AEBRGEEBTRARBETNEE

+5H =

/TQ\E{'I_ ©
FrEfEaBEYNBITETE-
EENFERELEENNDE  #ER
LA R 421,591,000 T (ZE-F

F : 34,830,000/ Jr) & (i) &N R &) 88 3L
Z AR ERER o
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28. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED

28. SRAITERK - KT

2021 2020

—E=-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx FAT

Bank loans RITER 6,129 6,300
Bank overdrafts RITEX 13,189 2,446
Trust receipt loans FEREEBEER 2,989 6,016
Factoring loans REER 74,847 34,978
97,154 49,740

The bank borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand
and denominated in HK$.

The average interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group

.
I

i

AEE 2 RITBRBRENRE
A TTEHE °

‘|]1]n}

RB|ERR  NREBERITERNFY

at the end of the reporting period were as follows: MEMT:
2021 2020
—EB—F T -TF
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.03% 5.25%
Bank loans RITER 1.16% 2.72%
Trust receipt loans ErRlEER 3.23% 5.32%
Factoring loans REER 4.29% 4.24%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s credit facilities are secured
by:

(i) The Group’s aggregated trade receivables and retention
receivables under contract assets of approximately
HK$62,605,000 (2020: HK$44,289,000) (note 21);

(i)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$36,353,000 (2020: HK$16,308,000) (note 24);

(i)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company;
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Group’s deposit and prepayment of a life
insurance policy of approximately HK$9,274,000 (2020:
HK$9,003,000) (note 18);

The Group’s property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$8,840,000 (2020: HK$5,482,000) (note
17);

Personal guarantee executed by a director of a
subsidiary; and

Receivables right for certain projects

The Group’s bank borrowings contain clauses which give
the banks the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with loan
covenants. Its repayments up to date are in accordance
with the scheduled repayments of the term loans. The
Group does not consider that the banks will probably
exercise their discretions to demand repayments so long
as the Group continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 6(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”), the former
immediate holding company, provided an unsecured loan
of HK$100,000,000 (“‘Unsecured Loan”) to the Company on
25 May 2018. The Unsecured Loan was interest-free and
repayable on 25 November 2020. New Grace Gain shall not
be entitled to demand early repayment and the Company has
no right to make early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

ivy AEBASRBRESEMNZENE
it FIE 499,274,000/ T(ZE =
Z4F 1 9,003,000 7T XFf5E18) :

v) AEBEHYWE #BIERIZED
8,840,000/ T (= & = & F:
5,482,000 7T ) (B 7£17) :

Vi) MBRAREERIMEAER:
53

(v BLFE TIHAB & R WK IR A

AKERTERAMBEER - T
HAEERTEETRERAT
ERTEEOERESE - %M
(G T RITERI T 2B B
BERAEEEER -

AEEENERERECETE
Rk - HBEERRMER IR
EHRERNEREERET - K
SERB/RABAEEEET A
FRE - BRI AAAREITER
ZREROHIGE - BAANEH
mBELREREENE—THB
AR M WK MY EE6(c)

RIEE B G fIEEERAR]
New Grace Gain Limited ([New Grace
Gan)RZZE—N\FHRAZTHHRRK
A A2 4t #3598 B 5)100,000,0007% 7T
((BERER]D EEHRERAR L
WER-_ZE_ZTF+—H=-THHAE
i o New Grace Gaini5 f # 2512 5l
BX BARAWEENGTERRE
FIRRIE R °
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At the inception date of 25 May 2018, the fair value of
the Unsecured Loan was determined at approximately
HK$85,390,000, which was valued by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach.
In subsequent periods, the Unsecured Loan is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the Unsecured Loan is 6.33%.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, New Grace Gain
and the Company entered into a supplemental agreement
(“Agreement 1) to extend the repayment period of the
Unsecured Loan for 6 months, i.e. the repayment term of 30
months has been extended to 36 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, New Grace Gain
and the Company further entered into second and third
supplemental agreement (“Agreement 2” and “Agreement 3”)
to further extend the repayment period of the Unsecured Loan
for aggregate 12 months, i.e. the repayment term of 36 months
has been extended to 48 months.

Save as the extension of the repayment period under the
Agreement 1, Agreement 2 and Agreement 3, other terms and
conditions of the Unsecured Loan remain unchanged.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, imputed interest
income of approximately HK$5,962,000 (2020: HK$2,981,000)
and imputed interest expense of approximately HK$5,962,000
(2020: HK$5,869,000) respectively, were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the
Unsecured Loan was approximately HK$92,894,000 (2020:
HK$92,894,000).
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HE-_Z-_ZF=A=1+—HILFE -
New Graoe Gain 2 N2 7] 5] 32 1 78 1
(D A EERERNER
HiMER6ME A - BI30E AMEZEHRE
R ZE36(EA

HZE _ﬁ_—ifﬂ*+ Etif
New Grace Gain £ A2 VA
”:G&M*Tﬁﬁﬁ U% 2| &
(%3] NE— P B EEFERD
EEHERAHX12EA - BI36E A8
EEHRELERZ=48(EA -

BRI HE - BB GESERME
HIR S - 4 9540 B A0 LA 0K I 0
BORBTE -

RBE-_ZE-_—F=A=+—HLHF
£ HER B A 45,962,000/ 7T (=
T — T 4 : 2,981,000 T) & 1 &
BB X 495,962,000/ T (ZE_ZF
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. 3E ik i 18
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised AEBOHEANELERIBEEREE
by the Group. N
Losses available
for offsetting
Accelerated tax against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
CIRE 34
RIRIER B
MEH AR E it Al B9 5 18 &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZT—NFHMA—H 7,544 (7,544) —
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss FRMNE(GTA) Bz
for the year 129 (129) —
As at 31 March 2020 and ﬁ’z\_?_—\, F=A=+—H
1 April 2020 R_ZE-_FTFMA—H 7,673 (7,673) —
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss FRMA,(GEA) B
for the year 48 48) —
As at 31 March 2021 RZZE-——F=A=+—H 7,721 (7,721) =

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$75,416,000 (2020: HK$85,023,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$46,790,000 (2020:
HK$46,500,000) of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax
losses of approximately HK$28,626,000 (2020: HK$38,523,000)
and other deductible temporary differences due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H x5 H
AR S R R s I M R B R T S
18 & #)75,416,0008 T (ZE T & :
85,023,000 L) B # & Fé«ﬁ %)fé 1 &5
18 #746,790,000% L (= T = & & :

46,500,000/ 70) ERBELEF B E ZE ©
A R 3% A SR B R - SR R
£ T & B) A % 75 /&5 18 4928,626,0007%
(=T =F 4 : 38,523,000/ 7T) & H
A FHBRE R EREEREERIEE
Eo AERMIBEBIBAERBALE -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. @A
2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% & fi%
HK$0.01 each HEO0.01B L 2 T IX 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRETE:
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.01 each H{E0.01E L 2 &\ A% 4,000 4,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are
mainly: (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the total number
of the shares in issue; and (i) to meet financial covenants
attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives reports from major shareholders and
other connected persons on any changes in shares held by
them to ensure the continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

Breaches to fulffill the financial covenants would permit the bank
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time or part-
time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
other contractors, business partners of the Company or any
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 19 February
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the Listing Date and any shares of the
Company which may be allotted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the offer size adjustment option. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any twelve months period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve months period
up to and including the date of the grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the offer date, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since
adoption of the Scheme.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2020/21 Annual Report
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. A< &) B & Ak i & M f&#

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY wBEH
(@) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF (@) ARBIH AR N TR
THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—EC-F —Z-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt 5E TET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR E 5,795 -
Due from a subsidiary ER—RMBARFE 82,183 82,183
87,978 82,183
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ FEfTFUA &4 & E M B 52,102 2,622
Due from a subsidiary EY—RMBARFRIE 34,599 34,452
Bank and cash balances FITRBREEH 334 59,529
87,035 96,603
Current liabilities nREEE
Accruals and other payables B ERREMENRE 1,311 1,166
Due to subsidiaries ENHBARFIE 5,794 -
7,105 1,166
Net current assets NHEERE 79,930 95,437
Total assets less current liabilities BEEARDERE 167,908 177,620
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other borrowing, unsecured Hipfash - EER 92,894 92,894
NET ASSETS BERE 75,014 84,726
Capital and reserves BARRGE
Share capital A 31 4,000 4,000
Reserves i 33(b) 71,014 80,726
TOTAL EQUITY RxaE 75,014 84,726
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2021 KEFGN_T_—F A=+
and signed on its behalf by: B EVHRUATESRERES:
Chen Rongsheng Guan Jingdong
PR Bt 22
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33. A QTR AT RE
£3))

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY wBEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (b) ARFIHEE
Accumulated
Share (losses)/ Total
premium profits equity
R (EBH)
& iEE wmH  ERAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHAT TAT
(note 34(b))
(PH 5£34(b))
As at 1 April 2019 RZE-NFEMA—A 84,403 3,834 88,237
Loss and total comprehensive FABEEEENE
income and changes in equity BEREREE
for the year - (7.511) (7,511)
As at 31 March 2020 and R-E-ZTF=A=+—HBK
1 April 2020 “E-ZTFNWA—H 84,403 (3,677) 80,726
Loss and total comprehensive FABERE2ANGEBER
income and changes in equity Bz
for the year — (9,712 9,712
As at 31 March 2021 RZZE-—F=RA=+—H 84,403 (13,389) 71,014
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34. RESERVES

(a)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
72 and 75 of the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares.

34. 1B

(a)

RNEE
REEFESEREZEHH
AR ET2RTEEME
B R EM PSR KR
EREBHKRE -
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REMSHBARE  ARRAR
5 BRI E S FAH DR FAR
R - i RBEREE IR BB
Bk ARRABENEELR
¥ EBHBRACIANES -

g BEASRERRNEE
MERETROMEENGEE -
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TIRAS ©
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35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. it E A E

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of each reporting REMEARNOMBRARFFELE T :
period are as follows:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and
establishment Date of incorporation/ paid up Percentage of ownership interest/voting power/
Name and operation establishment capital profit sharing Principal activity
SR ALSL /R L 4 B BRTR RERS/RER/
1 REEHH S/ R A S HERE MEENER TEEH
2021 2020
—Rz-F —RoTE
Direct ownership
ERFAE
iSend Limited Hong Kong 5 July 2019 HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
SRABRAR i —“F-NFtAEA 10,000 7T RERR
K. H. Development Holdings The BVI 13 August 2015 Us$100 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited EBRLHS —Z-1f\A+=H 100% 7 RERR
Send Link Technology PTE. Singapore 8 August 2019 581,000,000 100% = Inactive
LTD. sk ZE-AENANR 1,000,000%7 7T ETBEER
Indirect ownership
HEMAE
BMXE2EARKERDR  PRC 29 September 2019 = = 100%  Inactive
(ENLEE) (ote) HE Z2-AEAAZTAR = ENEEER
(B t)
K. H. Civil Engineering Hong Kong 5 March 2001 HK$100 100% 100% Provision of foundation services
Limited B —ZZ-£=f1H 100 7T Rt 2 R%
ML ATRERAR
K. H. Foundations Limited Hong Kong 4 January 1985 HK$32,962,000 100% 100% Provision of foundation services
S ERRAR Bk -ANEF-AEE 32,962,000/ Rt R R
K. H. Holdings Limited Hong Kong 15 September 2006 HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
FITERERAR B ZERERFAATRRA 1B REER
K. H. Machinery Limited Hong Kong 23 January 2007 HK$3,000 100% 100% Leasing of machinery
FITHAERAA B —TR+5-A=+=A 3,000 T BREE
K. H. Piling & Engineering Hong Kong 8 November 2012 HK$100 100% 100% Inactive
Limited B —F—%1+-ANR 100 7T ENEEER
TR IRARAR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

36.

Note:

P

# M X {572 was established as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the

PRC. The registered capital of %k /N ¥ =2 is RMB100,000,000. Such
registered capital has yet been paid up as at 31 March 2020. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, # /il % {= 2 has been deregistered.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

@ MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

i)

i)

During the vyear ended 31 March 2021,
imputed interest income and imputed interest
expense of approximately HK$5,962,000
(2020: HK$2,981,000) and HK$5,962,000
(2020: HK$5,869,000) were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, transfer
from right-of-use assets to property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$20,534,000 (2020:
Nil) was made.

During the year ended 31 March 2021,
addition to right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$13,188,000, out of which approximately
HK$1,710,000 was settled by cash and the
remaining balance of HK$11,478,000 has been
recorded as lease liabilities.

35.

36. &

B I 22 =] (4])

GEE

HMIEERFRKL BINEBEDE - &
N AEZ R FMERR A RK100,000,000
L e RZEZTF=A=+—0  E@xME
AEALff - HE_FT-_—F=ZA=+—HI
FE - M EREEEH -

GERERERMEE

@ BERIRERF
i) HE_ZT-_—F=A=1+—
HIEFE  HEMNBKA
#95,962,00078 T(= T =
T4FE 1 2,981,000 7T) & H#E
E R B X 495,962,000/

T (ZZE=FF : 5,869,000
BT BIRGEEERE R

ﬁfﬂ%@ﬂ&mi‘%ﬁ@ B

iy BHEBE-—F=A=+—
HIEFE BFERAEEE
EREYE KEBREME
#920,534,0008 L (= F =
TEME) o

iy HE-E-_—F=A=+-—
HIEFE FREEERE
#913,188,000/%8 7T © E A 4)
1,710,000 8 TR & & E -

£8F 4% £211,478,0007% 7T A
RIEAERE -
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details of the changes in
the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

36. e R E AN E KM

(#8)

(o)

MEEBMELEREMN
# R

TRIR A B AR B A
BENEBHIE  ERSRIKE
REBH - WEFHFEEBE
TIEEB SRR ERRRALR
BN A EEFARSRBRT
DEAREEDFERETED
& -

Bank
Finance borrowings, Other
lease Lease secured  borrowing,
payables liabilities (note)  unsecured Total
MEHRE RITEMR > HMEXR
BAME HEQHE KM (T A @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TFER TET TEL FTER
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(Bt z£27) (Bt z£28) (Pt z£29)
Balance as at 1 April 2019 R-Z-NEMA-BHHE - 19,839 24,970 90,006 134,815
Changes from financing cash flows: REBMERENEZEH:
Bank borrowings raised EERITER = = 152,915 - 152915
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER = = (130,591) - (130,591)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR - (12,300) = - (12,300)
Other changes: Hitn 28
Imputed interest income (note 36(a)(i) HEB A 2 (P 3E36()() = = = 2981  (2981)
Imputed interest expense (note 36(a)(i)) 5 ) 25 X (1 5E36()() = = = 5,869 5,869
Additions to lease liabilities HEAREM
(note 36(a)(ii)) (Pt} 2£36(a)(ii) = 2,811 = = 2,811
Termination of leases RILHEE = (122) = - (122)
- (96N 22,304 2888 15,601
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_ZF=A=+—H - 10,228 47,294 92,894 150,416
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. (2 2 IR € K E +& M} 5%

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) (%&)
() RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES b)) MEZBFAEELEBEN
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Bank
borrowings, Other
Lease secured  borrowing,
liabilities (note 28)  unsecured
(note 27) (note) (note 29) Total
RITERM »

R HMER

HEAE  (MEE28) B
(K &27) (ffaE)  (HfEE29) Mt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET THET THEL TAT

Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 AN_Z-_ZFMA—H
K& E 7| 558 10,228 47,294 92,894 150,416

Changes from financing cash flows: REMERERE2EE:

Bank borrowings raised BEEHRTHER = 205,030 — 205,030
Repayment of bank borrowings EBBITER = (168,359) —  (168,359)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAR 9,772) = = 9,772)
Other changes: Hit1 &8 :
Imputed interest income (note 36(a)(i) HEEF 2 U A (B 7E36()() = = (5,962) (5,962)
Imputed interest expense (note 36(a)(i) #E R 25 X (F 2E36()() = = 5,962 5,962
Additions to lease liabilities (note 36(a)(ii)) 78 & B & 1 AN (Pff 7£36(a)(iii) 11,478 = = 11,478
Termination of leases KIEAE (30) = = (30)
1,676 36,671 = 38,347
As at 31 March 2021 R-B-——f=H=+—H 11,904 83,965 92,894 188,763
Note: o5
The bank overdraft was excluded from the bank borrowings secured RZE_—FR-F_FTF=A=1+—
as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. H  SRITEX T EMAFTERRITE
e
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. (2 2 IR € K E +& M} 5%

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) (#8)

(c) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES c HEMRER 48 %E
Amounts included in consolidated statement of cash AR ARERERNESEERE
flows comprise the following: AT &I8

2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FAT
Within operating cash flows RIEERBRENR 339 721
Within financing cash flows RBERERENRN 9,772 12,300
The amounts relate to the lease rental R NHEEHRSBBHN

paid - 10,111 13,021

. =

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. IAREE

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has @ MRWEHR AEEER KK
provided guarantees to an insurance company as follows: AR EH T ER:

2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TEx FAT
Guarantees on performance bonds  ABREEANELIRES
for construction contracts RMEER 189,806 75,371
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(Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the securities for the Group’s
performance bonds for construction contracts are as
follows:

(i) guarantees on performance bonds amounting
to approximately HK$183,894,000 (2020:
HK$69,459,000) are secured by (i) the Group’s
other receivables of HK$82,171,000 (2020:
HK$2,936,000); (i) a personal guarantee executed
by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and
(iii)y corporate guarantees executed by the Company
and a subsidiary of the Company.

(i)  guarantee on a performance bond amounting to
approximately HK$5,912,000 (2020: HK$5,912,000)
is secured by () the Group’s pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$10,349,000 (2020:
HK$10,307,000); and (i) the corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

In May 2015, a subcontractor claimed against the Group
for certain construction works (the “Dispute”). The total
amount of claim by the subcontractor is approximately
HK$20,329,000. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Group made a security deposit into court and the
Dispute is currently under legal proceeding up to date of
this annual report.

Pursuant to the deed of indemnity executed by the then
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company,
New Grace Gain and its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr.
Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert and Mr.
Yue Suen Leung, in favour of the Company, each of them
has irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
agreed to indemnify the Group against, among others,
all loss and damages arising from the Dispute.

Accordingly, no provision has been made for the claim.

@)

(#8)

RZEBE-_—F=A=+—H ' &
SENEEEARVRES 2K
R

i) BHRESZERD
183,894,000/ jT(=— & —
= £ : 69,459,000/ 7T) Jb
LA () A 52 B E fib j& Y 51008
82,171,000 T (ZE =&
£F 1 2,936,000/ 7T) ; (i) A
NEIMBATEETR L Z
fEAFER ¢ R (i) ANA T RA
NG NGIE VAN
EAREIEIR -

i) BHRESZERY
5,912,000 (=T = T
4 1 5,912,000 7T) T3 A (i)
AREBBEMBETHERLY
10,349,000 T (ZE =&
£F 110,307,000 7T) + K (i)
RNATEY 2 RE ERE
AR o

RZZE—RFRA —EZ2HEH
METRETIERRNAEBIRER
BUHBD ZoBEENRER
%849 /520,329,0008 7T - H &=
T F=H=+—HILEE -
AEEREREDRES @ KB
EXRFHRAE  AUBRERRERF
B IEEFEITH o

BEARB)ERIZRBRRENEE
AR New Grace Gaink HE&&XE
=HEBEANGHREE B HREL
HREFFRBEEURNRG AT
AMBIHHERERZE  #F
EBETAIBUE & K i 2[R
KERIRE - st(EheiE) Bt
MMEAN—YIBRARIBEERE
mMASEEELREE -

Futt - W EphZ REFT RS -
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162

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38.

At the end of reporting period, the Group did not have any
capital commitments (2020: Nil).

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.

(@ In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following material

BAREE

RIREER - AN & B E (T (a8 A&
B(ZE2ZZTFE)-

Bl 5 XX 5

RAERBRRE M T KEN
RZEBHO RS REHBIN KK
BRENGEEBTETUAT

@)

53

transaction with its related party during the year: BEARS:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T F#& T
Rental expenses charged by a related — 5% B8 Bt A 5] WER A9
company (note i) & 7 X (M 5ED 1,466 1,543
Secondment fee charged by a related — 5% 8 B /A &) U BXHY
company (note i) CECE SR ) - 471
Salary paid to a related party (note i) At FRB T HNEH
(B = i) 180 —
Notes: i

i) Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a former director of the Company,
who resigned on 13 August 2018 but still retained as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, has beneficial interest in
this related company.

ii) Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group, whose spouse received the salary during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 39. BAH% 5 XX 5 (4&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b)) AEBFEEIRABEHH
Group:
2021 2020
—g=-—F —Z-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TEx F#& T
Short term employee benefits HHEERT 8,044 7,850
Pension scheme contributions RARET &I 5k 52 37
Total compensation paid to key MEZERABLMAH
management personnel B PR 8,096 7,887
Key management personnel represents the independent FEEBABEANSEBLIEH
non-executive directors and executive directors of the TESRATES  A5EME
Group, managing director and general manager of the R ESREERBISIE -
Group’s subsidiaries.
Further details of employee benefits expense and EHRERFAZILEEMEHN
directors’ emoluments are included in notes 13 and 14 E—HFEORIE NS B ®
respectively to the consolidated financial statements. =B FE13%14 -
40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. 3R %,H.H 1&5 I8
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group HE-_Z - —FR-ZZ-_FF=H=+
commenced formal legal proceedings against the customer *Elﬂzﬁf REEGER EEFET
and the customer made a counter claimed against the Group EKE—EERHEZEPEMENE
in respect of a project completed in prior year. In May 2021, BHFD MzsPHYrEEELR
the Group has reached the final settlement with the customer RE - RNZT—FHA AEEHEZ
and all outstanding monies have been settled in June 2021. BPERKENE H?ﬁﬁ & R R IE
ER=ZT_—FAKEE -
41. APPROVED OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. H A B 15 3R 3k

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June
2021.

REMBRRENRZT_—F A=t
AEEESHERTETE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEBBEREAHBEENEENEER

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BESEHINET
RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH BZ=HA=1+—HLEFE 2
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—EI—F —B-TF —T-hAFE —E-N\F —T—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBTT FEBTT FH&T F&T

Revenue U 2% 933,797 374,903 203,015 225,579 125,589
Cost of services rendered P72 i BR 7% A A& (892,144)  (334,061) (201,188)  (222,759) (121,014)
Gross profit EH 41,653 40,842 1,827 2,820 4,575
Other income HA g A 12,699 3,545 15,921 137 171
Administrative and other THREEMEERASY
operating expenses (43,626) (34,627) (40,589) (80,624) (38,209)
Provision for ECL on trade  #LZ 5 U X E K&
receivables and contract AHEEMNER
assets EEBETIREE (2,142) (1,521) — - -
Profit/(loss) from operations & & B 5 Fl
(B#H) 8,584 8,239 (22,841) (27,667) (33,457)
Finance costs A& B AR (7,513) (7,230) (6,266) (1,430) (936)
Profit/(loss) before tax BrREEATE R (B E) 1,071 1,009 (29,107) (29,097) (34,393)
Income tax credit FsHEe — = = 3,907 544
Profit/(loss) and total RNARHEB AELE
comprehensive income Wi F (B8 R
for the year attributable to 2 MUz £ 5
owners of the Company 1,071 1,009 (29,107) (25,190) (33,849)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH R=BA=+—HzEBEER
=R
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—F-_—F ZT-TF ZT-NF ZT)\F ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#xT FET FET FET FET

Total assets EERE 682,892 418,791 327,270 237,529 244 536
Total liabilities BERE (589,405)  (326,375)  (235,863) (112,515) (94,332)
Net assets BEFE 93,487 92,416 91,407 125,014 150,204
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